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2016 2.7% 2017 2.8%
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3,836,968 22,787 3,505,446
- - - 152,896
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120,906 1,410 - -
170,724 1,654 - -
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221,014 2,089 131,552
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879,721 3,974 1,999,455
387,011 2,278 2,218,040
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2014 31 574,236,166 2,871,180,830
2014 12 574,236,166 2,871,180,830 0)
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2016 31 2,296,944, 664 11,484,723,320
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(19,983 )
(1)2012 2013 31
0) 2014 12 31
574,236,166 2.12
®) 2015 30
1,148,472,332 2.12
2.15
®
2017 31
% %
705,508 99.220 531,902,862 23.16
5,531 0.78 1,765,041,802 76.84
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FIFC 11
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31,799,128 1.38
35
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

31 31 31 31 31
751.19 958.93 1,167.60 1,234.65 1,278
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ADS
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31 31 31 31 31
14.40 15.76 18.64 19.46 20.47
1,590 1,740 2,058 2,149 2,260
9.55 9.81 12.52 15.26 13.42
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2016 10 2016 11 2016 12 2017 2017 2017
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993.15 901.00 958.00 901.15 905.15 999
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2016 10 2016 11 2016 12 2017 2017 2017
16.71 15.34 15.08 15.38 15.30 15.92
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541,710 361,005 113,875 1,175,000 52,350 112,780
@) ®)
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‘ @ ® 5
484,671 361,851 285,548 1,003,498 Das000 @es,000
7
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©
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2016 31

2017 13
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2018
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2016 10 14

2017

2016 11

0.87

RSU

2017

2018

2017 13
0.82
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U.B.
2016 10 14 2015
2017 31
2015 RSU
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2016 12 31
2017
RSU ESOP
2.15
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2015
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2.1 3,489 4,935
2.2 1,538 11
1,900 1,710
562 457
2.4 749 672
2.3 44 17
8,282 7,802
2.7 1,807 1,589
2.8 563 568
2.8 120 149
11 16
2.2 984 273
2.16 83 81
2.16 881 789
2.4 123 111
4,572 3,576
12,854 11,378
57 58
2.3 - 1
2.16 599 515
5 4
274 201
209 202
2.6 63 77
2.5 954 940
2,161 1,998
2.16 32 39
2.5 24 17
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2.1 385,255 544,923
2.2 169,826 1,215
209,798 188,818
62,056 50,462
2.4 82,705 74,202
2.3 4,858 1,877
914,498 861,497
2.7 199,529 175,457
2.8 62,166 62,719
2.8 13,250 16,453
1,215 1,767
2.2 108,653 30,145
2.16 9,165 8,944
2.16 97,280 87,121
2.4 13,582 12,257
504,840 394,862
1,419,339 1,256,359
6,294 6,404
2.3 - 110
2.16 66,142 56,866
552 442
30,255 22,194
23,078 22,305
2.6 6,956 8,502
2.5 105,341 103,795
238,618 220,619
0 0
2.16 3,533 4,306
2.5 2,650 1,877

244,801 226,803
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2017 31
2016 117 62 3 - 11 14 10 217
@ - - - @ - - @
2017 31 116 62 3 - 10 14 10 215
2016 (46) ©)) (©)) - @ ®) ) (68)
(14) ® - - - @ ©)) (28)
1 @ - - - - 1 1
2017 31 (59) (19) ® - [6)) Q) (©) (95)
2017 31 57 43 - - 9 7 4 120
2016 71 53 - - 10 9 6 149
3-10 5-8 - - 50 3-10 3-5
1-6 3-6 - - 44 1-8 1-4
2017 31
2017

31
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2016 31
2015 72 42 3 2 11 8 5 143
45 21 - - - 6 4 76
2.9

- - - ® - - - ®
- ) - - - - 1 -
2016 31 117 62 3 - 11 14 10 217
2015 (26) ®) ®) @ @ ®) @ (41)
(20) ) - - - @ ©)) (30)
- - - 2 - - - 2
- - - - - 1 - 1
2016 31 (46) ©) ®) - (6)) ) () (68)
2016 31 71 53 - - 10 9 6 149
2015 46 39 - - 10 3 4 102

3-10 8-10 - - 50 3-10 3-5
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2015 31
2014 64 6 3 2 11 5 1 92
13 39 - - - 3 4 59
2.9

- ©) - - - - - ©)
©) - - - - - - ©)
2015 31 72 42 3 2 11 8 5 143
2014 @1 O) ®) @ - @ o @)
™ @ - - & & - Ay
- 3 - - - - - 3
2 - - - - - - 2
205 31 (26) ®) ®) @ () ®) O @
2015 31 46 39 - - 10 3 4 102
2014 43 2 - - 11 1 - 57

3-10 10 3 - 50 2-10 3

2-8 10 - - 46 10 3

2017 31 2016 31 2015 31

118 108 110
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2.9
AG AG
2012 10 22
AG 100% 219
112
IFRS 3R 2016 31
2016 2015 23
41
2015 100%
225
ST
Cloud Quality SaaS
2 - 2
™) 6 - 6
- 39 39
- 3 3
- 13 13
- 4 4
- (16) (16)
8 43 51
174
225
™) 19

225
2015

31
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Kallidus Inc. Skava

2015
Kallidus Inc. 100%
Kallidus Skava Systems Private Limited 100%
91 20
IP
™ 6 - 6
- 21 21
- 2 2
- 27 27
- (20) (20)
6 30 36
71
107
™
91
16
107
Kallidus 2017 12 31 Kallidus
Kallidus
14%
2017 31 Kallidus
2017 31 2016 31 14
20

2016 31
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LLC

2015 11 16
LLC 100% 33
32

™ 6 - 6

- 18 18

37

™

33

37

32%
2015 12 31 2016 12 31 2016

IFRS 2016 31
2017 14

2016 31

EdgeVerve Systems Limited

EdgeVerve
2014 15
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EdgeVerve 2014 14
2014
EdgeVerve
2014 70 421
Finacle Edge Services
2015 24 Finacle Edge Services
EdgeVerve 2015
2015
EdgeVerve Finacle
Edge Services 3,222 491 177 27
2015 12 11 EdgeVerve 850,000,000 850
129 254,900,000 2,549 389

EdgeVerve 2017 31 420 63
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2.10

31
2017 2016 2015

5,612 5,236 4,862

( 29 ) - 23 41

( 2.7 2.8 ) 254 222 175

333 345 297

571 537 354

118 113 139

120 81 31

( 2.14 ) 73 55 50

114 118 68

82 68 82

191 160 124

22 17 21

12 1 6

34 33 36

2 1 2

51 44 26

21 @ 29

8 9 9

34 33 42

36 37 59

7,688 7,126 6,453
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2.11.1
2017

31

2016

31

2017 31
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2016 31

142 131
19 18
10 9
10 3

(13) (11)

4 )
172 142
143 134

12 10
2 1
37 17

(13) 1)

3 ®
184 143

12 1
12 1
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2017 2016 2015 31
31
2017 2016 2015
19 18 16
@ @) @)
17 17 15
2017 2016 2015
31
2017 2016 2015
10 3 11
@ @ @)
8 2 10
31
2017 2016 2015
8 - 9
8 - 9
31
2017 2016 2015
15 15 13
1 1 1
1 1 1

17 17 15
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2017 31 2016 31
2017 31 2016 31
6.9% 7.8%
8.0% 8.0%
2017 2016 2015 31
31
2017 2016 2015

7.8% 7.8% 9.2%

8.0% 8.0% 8.0%

6.1 6.4 6.4

BPO EdgeVerve BPO
EdgeVerve Systems Limited
2017 31 2016 31
2017 2016 2015 31 14 11
12
2017 31
2017 31
%
2018 15
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24
25
26
29
30
10 148
2.11.2
2017 2016 2015 31 25 36 35
31
2017 2016 2015

22 32 31

2 3 3

1 1 1

25 36 35

2.11.3
2017 31 2016 31
2017 31 2016 31
688 575
688 575
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2017 31 2016 31
6.9% 7.8%
6 7
8.6% 8.8%
8.6% 8.6%
2017 2016 2015 31 69 63 56
31
2017 2016 2015
61 56 50
5 5 4
3 2 2
69 63 56
2.11.4
31
2017 2016 2015
™ 5,501 5,120 4,756
37 46 43
74 70 63
5,612 5,236 4,862

(2017 2016 2015 31 17
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31
2017 2016 2015
4,987 4,627 4,299
405 403 389
220 206 174
5,612 5,236 4,862
2.12
2014 12 31
574,236,166 2015 30
1,148,472,332
2015 17 ADS
ADS ADS ADS
2017 2016 31 11,289,514 11,323,576
1961 10 AA(D) (i)
1961 10 AA(2)
2017 31
2018
70% IFRS
2018
13,000

2.12.1
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2.12.2

2017
0.22

2016
0.47

2015

2.12.3

2.12.4

2015

31
2016

31
2015 17

31

2017 13
2017 24

40%

11

14.75
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ADS
ADS

50%

0.17 2017

10

1.21

0.23
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2.13
31
2017 2016 2015
352 402 447
28 - -
4 10 26
18 - 2
89 4 85
(54) 21 Q)
22 39 7
459 476 560
2.14
2017 2016 2015 73 55
50
2017 31 2016 31
71 56
191 132
114 67
10
2.15 ( ESOP )
2015 2015
SEBI 2014
SEBI 1999 SEBI ESOP 2011
SEBI
2015
2015 2016 31
2015
2015 24,038,883 2016
31 2011
11,223,576 17,038,883
7,000,000

2015

186/323



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)

oOoOooodn
2016 1,783,615 RSU ADS
73,020
2016 11 970,375 RSU ADS
1,205,850
ESOP ADS
20,640
2017
18,550
2017 31 2015 11,289,514
100,000 2017 31
106,845
2016 31 2015
2,000,000 RSU
5,000,000 2017
2016 2,000,000 RSU 120,700 RSU
2017 13 132,483 RSU 1.9 330,525
ESOP 0.96 2017
2018 137,741 RSU
2017 RSU 2017
RSU IFRS 2017 31
2017 31 2016 31
2016 10 14 €00 U.B.
2015 27,250 RSU 43,000 ESOP 2017
31 RSU ESOP 2017
RSU
RSU ESOP 2017
IFRS 2017 31
2011 2011 2015 2015
RSU 2011 RSU
2011 30 2011 2011 10 17
11,334,400
10
2011
2016 31 100,000
2016 31 11,223,576 2011
10,824
100,000 2015
2015 31
108,268 RSU 2015 22
124,061 RSU
RSU RSU
2016 14 2015 22
RSU
RSU 2016 31
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2017 31 2015 2011
2017 31
( ) )
2015 2011
RSU-
IES
™ 221,505 5
1,878,025 5
61,540 5
34,062 5
2,003,928 5
2015 2011
ESOP-
IES
309,650 998
309,650 998
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2017 31
( ) )

2015 2011

RSU-
ADS

996,665 0.07
39,220 0.07
957,445 0.07

2015 2011

ESOP-ADS
896,200 15.26
8,200 15.26
888,000 15.26
2016 31 2015 2011
2016 31

( ) )

2015 2011

IES

Q) 108,268 5
124,061 5
™ 10,824 5
221,505 5
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2015 31 2011
2015 31
( ) ( )
2015 2011
IES
™ 108,268 5
108,268 5
Q) 2.12
2017 31 2016 31 2015
16.10 16
2017 31 RSU ESOP
( ) ( )
2015 ADS IES
0.07(RSV) 2,961,373 1.88 0.07
14-16(ESOP) 1,197,650 7.09 15.83
4,159,023 3.38 4.61

2016 31 2015 RSU 1.98
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RSU
2017 - 2017 - 2017 - 2017 -
-RSU -ESOP ADS-RSU ADS-ESOP
2016 11 2016 11 2016 11 2016 11
/ 989 989 15.26 15.26
-ADS  (*)
/ 5.00 998 0.07 15.26
-ADS  (*)
o 24-29 27-29 26-29 27-31
1-4 3-7 1-4 3-7
o 2.37 2.37 2.29 2.29
o 6-7 6-7 1-2 1-2
929 285 14.35 3.46
/ -ADS  (*)
2017 - 2017 - 2016 - 2015 -
ADS
2016 2016 2015 22 2014 21
/ 1,085 16.57 1,024 3,549
-ADS  (*)
/ 5.00 0.07 5.00 5.00
-ADS  (*)
b 25-29 26-30 28-36 30-37
1-4 1-4 1-4 1-4
b 2.37 2.29 2.43 1.84
b 6-7 0.5-1 7-8 8-9
1,019 15.59 948 3,355
/ -ADS  (*)
(*)2015
RSU/ESOP RSU/ESOP RSU/ESOP
RSU/ESOP RSU/ESOP
2017 2016 2015 31 17
2017 31
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2.16
31
2017 2016 2015
616 642 511
226 167 282
842 809 793
@ 3 6
) (13) 6
) (10) 12
834 799 805
2017 2016 2015 31 23 47 26
2014 2015 31 29
2.7
2017 2016 2015
2017 2016 2015
IFRS 2017
2.2
2017
1961 1961

2.19.2

2.19.2
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31
2017 2016 2015
2,974 2,851 2,818
34.61% 34.61% 33.99%
1,029 987 958
(295) (268) (273)
112 109 134
(23) 7 (26)
(10) (13) (15)
14 9 7
10 1 ©)
4 30 34
- - 1
® ® ®
1 - -
834 799 805
2017 2016 2015 31 34.61% 34.61%
33.99% 2015 34.61%
2017 31 DSIR 2017 31
DSIR
200%
2016 31 2011 11 23 DSIR 2014
2015 31 2015
Finacle Edgeverve Systems Limited
Edgeverve 2016
STP
2005 SEZ
2005
50%
1961
50% 2.12
2017 2016 2015 31
295 268 273
2017 2016 2015 31 0.13 0.12 0.12
2.12
15% Branch Profit Tax 2017 31
924 2017 31
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50
2017
2017 31 2016 31 819 745
2017 31 2016 31
2017 31 2016 31
881 789
(599) (515)
282 274
2017 2016 2015
31
2017 2016 2015
274 203 (111)
6 12) 3
843 892 1,102
( 2.16 (842) (809) (793)
1 - 2
282 274 203
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2017 31 2016 31
21 27
6 8
21 13
58 59
9 10
15 12
25 8
155 137
(50) (51)
(32) (38)
- @
(22) ®
(104) (95)
83 81
(32) (39)
12 12
2017 31 2016 31
12 75 61
12 80 76
155 137
12 (48) (68)
12 (56) @7
(104) (95)
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2017 2016 2015
31
2017 2016 2015
42 60 99
IFRS 2.2 1 - -
2.9 - (20) (16)
2 Q) ©
/ 8 10 12)
2.16
@ @ O]
51 42 60
2017 31
2016
2015
2007 MAT
2011 2011
BPO
2017 31 2016 31
2017 31 722
4,682 262 1,696
2016 31 662
4,383
2007 2008 2009 10 A
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 10 A
10 AA
2012 2013
10 AA 2009
2007 2008 2009 2013

2010 2011 2012
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2.17
31
2017 2016 2015
2,285,639,447  2,285,616,160 2,285,610,264
(€3]16))
757,298 102,734 32,676
2,286,396,745 2,285,718,894  2,285,642,940
@
@ 2.12
2017 31 112,190

2016 2015 31
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2.18
31
2017 2016
BPO BPO 99.98% 99.98%
100% 100%
S. de R.L. de C.V. 100% 100%
AB 100% 100%
100% 100%
DO LTDA 100% 100%
100% 100%
USA
100% 100%
99.98% 99.98%
S.r.o. BPO s.r.o @
Sp Z.0.0 99.98% 99.98%
BPO sp z.o.0o ©
BPO S.DE R.L. DE.C.VP®D - -
McCamiish LLC(1) 99.98% 99.98%
99.98% 99.98%
@
100% 100%
&)
EdgeVerve Systems Limited EdgeVerve 100% 100%
100% 100%
AG
AG
100% 100%
®
100% 100%
®
AG 100% 100%
e @

ROTED : 100%
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GmbH( Hafner Bauer & Odman
GrbH U9

NV 99.90%
S.A. O]
GmbH 100%
omoH
100%
an
SAS 100%
©)
SAS
S.r.o 100%
S.r.o
(©)
100%
GmoH®
100%
(©)
100%
©)
B.V. 100%
(©)
B.V.
Ltda 99.99%
O]
Ltda.
Sp. z.0.0. 100%
Sp. z.o0.0. ®
100%
(©)
S.C. S.R.L. 100%
S.C.
(©)
S.R.L.
S.R.L. 100%
S.R.L.
©)
®
LLC 100%
100%
©) 100%
Gmbh(7) 100%
(M (15) _
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100%

99.90%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

99.99%%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%



Skava Systems Pvt Ltd Skava Systems

Q)

@®

Kallidus Inc.(Kallidus)®

LLC (10)

an

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

@
&)
®

Q)

®)

()

™
(8)2015
(9)2015
(10)2015
(1)
(12)2015
(13)2016
(14)2016
(15)2016
(16)2016

an

2015

2017

2017

BPO

11 16

11 20
15

10

11 16

12 21

31

2016

31

AG

AG

AG

Skava Systems 100%
Kallidus Inc. 100%
100%

Sp Z.0.0

2015 31
AG

31

AG

AG

AG

BPO

AG
AG

AG

2017

2016

DWA LLC DWA

€))

16%

16%

€Y
20%

15

2015 31

DWA LLC
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2017 31 DWA LLC 16%
2017 31 DWA LLC
2015 31
DWA 15
15
BPO BPO
BPO BPO
EdgeVerve Systems Limited EdgeVerve
EdgeVerve Systems Limited EdgeVerve
2.11
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2017 31
S
2016 10 13 IAS 24
2017
IAS 24
31
2017 2016 2015
12 15 5
W@ A (G)(6)
2 2 2
14 17 7
(1)2017 2016 2015 31
(2) 2017 31 2016 12 31
0.87
(3) 2016 31 2015 10 12
2.58
(4) 2016 31 2015
RSU
2017 2017 13
2017 31 0.82
132,483  RSU 1.9 330,525  ESOP 0.96
2017
2018 137,741 RSU
RSU 2017
2016 31 4.33
2014 30 4.18
2016 31 4.33 2016 15
(5) 2017 31 U.B.
2016 11 2016 2016 10
14 2015 27,250  RSU 43,000  ESOP
2017 31 RSU ESOP 2017
(6) 2015 22 2015 31
2.1
2.19
IFRS
2016 31
APAC GMU
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HILIFE

IFRS

IPS

ECS

IPS
FS MFG
Hi-Tech
Finacle
IPS
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2.19.1

2017 31

FS MFG ECS RCL HILIFE  Hi-Tech
2,765 1,119 2,300 1,673 1,258 763 330 10,208
1,382 584 1,107 802 623 396 210 5,104
607 259 532 387 291 177 76 2,329
776 276 661 484 344 190 44 2,775
255
2,520
459

®

2,974
834
2,140
254
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2016 31

FS MFG ECS RCL HILIFE  Hi-Tech
2,590 1,047 2,061 1,556 1,231 756 260 9,501
1,248 555 944 742 585 371 156 4,601
606 257 505 381 302 185 65 2,301
736 235 612 433 344 200 39 2,599
224
2,375
476
2,851
799
2,052
222
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2015 31

FS MFG ECS RCL HILIFE  Hi-Tech
2,352 1,008 1,962 1,449 1,094 640 206 8,711
1,115 533 895 658 521 313 154 4,189
541 245 478 353 266 156 50 2,089
696 230 589 438 307 171 2 2,433
175
2,258
560
2,818
805
2,013

175
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2.19.2

2017 31

6,320 2,295 325 1,268 10,208
3,222 1,147 149 586 5,104
1,460 529 66 274 2,329
1,638 619 110 408 2,775
255

2,520

459

®)

2,974

834

2,140

254

2016 31

5,957 2,186 246 1,112 9,501
2,936 1,060 109 496 4,601
1,459 534 51 257 2,301
1,562 592 86 359 2,599
224

2,375

476

2,851
799
2,052
222

207/323



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn

2015 31

5,357 2,097 209 1,048 8,711
2,558 1,028 115 488 4,189
1,303 508 44 234 2,089
1,496 561 50 326 2,433
175

2,258

560

2,818

805

2,013

175

2.19.3
2017 2016 2015 31 10%

2.20
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1933 1934 S-X-17 210.5-04(c)
2017 44 @ 20 - 63
2016 59 ©) Q) (5) 44
2015 36 4 29 ) 59
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Infesys Limited and subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31,

{Dollars in millions except equity share data)

Note 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 21 3489 4,935
Current investments 22 1538 1
Trade recevables 1,900 1,710
Linbilled revenue 62 457
Prepaymenis and other current assels 24 49 G712
Denvative financial instruments 23 44 17
Total current assets 8282 7.802
Hon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 27 1,807 1,588
Goodwill 28 563 568
Intangible assets 28 120 149
Investiment in associate 1 16
Mon-current investments 2.2 984 273
Deterred income lax assets 216 a3 81
Income tax assels 218 a1 789
Other non-current assets 24 123 111
Total nen-current assets 4 572 3,576
Total assets 12,654 11,378
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Trade payables &7 58
Derivative financial instruments 2.3 - 1
Current income tax liabilities 216 £99 515
Client deposits 5 4
Uneamed revenue 274 201
Employee benefit obhgations 209 202
Provisions 26 B3 L
Other current iabilibes 25 a54 940
Total current liabilities 2,181 1,998
Hon-current liabilities
Deferred income tax abilities 216 32 3
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Other non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity

Share capital - ¥5- (S8016) par value 2 400,000,000
(2,400,000,000) authonzed equity shares, issued and
outstanding 2,285 655,150 (2,285 621,088) equity shares,
net of 11,289 514 (11,323 576) treasury shares each as of

March 31, 2017 (March 31, 2016), respectively
Share premium

Retained eamings

Cash flow hedge reserve

Other reserves

Other components of equity

Total equity attributable to equity holders
company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Commilments and contingent habiliies

of the

25 24 17

2,247 2,054

199 159

Rar 570

12,190 11,083

[ [

(2,345} (2,528)

10,637 9324

10,837 9,324

12,854 11,378
2.8, 2.7 and
216

The accompanying notes form an integral parf of the consoldated financial statements

Infosys Limited and subsidiaries

Censclidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended March 31,

{Dollars in millions except equity share and per equity share data)

HNote 2017 2018 2015
Revenues 10,208 9,501 8
Cost of sales 6 446 5,950 5,374
Gross profit 3,782 3,554 3337
Cperating expenses:
Selling and marketing expenses 535 522 480
Adminestrative expenses Tar G54 508
Total operating expenses 1,242 1,176 1,078
Operating profit 2,520 2376 2,268
Other income, net 213 458 476 560
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Share in associate's profit [ (loss) and
others

Profit before income taxes

Income tax expense

Met profit

QOther comprehensive income

Mems that will mot be reclassified to profit or
loss:

Re-measurements of the net defined
benefit kability / asset

Cumulative impact on reversal of unrealized
gain on quoted debl secuntes on adoption
of IFRS 9

Equity instruments through other
comprehensive income

Hems that will be reclassified subsequently
o profit oF loss:

Fair valuation of investments, net

Fair wvalue changes on denvatives
designated as cash flow hedge, net

Foreign currency translation

Total other comprehensive income, net
of tax

Total comprehensive income

Profit attributable to:

Owneers of the company

Mon-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable
ta!

Owners of the company

Mon-controlling interests

Earnings per equity share
Basic ($)
Diluted (%)

218 {5) - -

2874 285 2,818

216 B34 799 B0DS

2140 2,052 2,013

211 and 2.16 {7) (2} (8}
2.2 {3) - -

{1} - -

(13) (2} (8

2.2 {2) 6 14

23and 216 6 = =
1498 {436) {375)

202 (430) (361)

189 (432) (269)

2,329 1,620 1.644

2,140 2052 2013

2,140 2,052 2,013

2,329 1,620 1,644

2,329 1,620 1,644

0.94 0.890 0.88

0.94 0.90 088
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Weilghted average equity shares used in
computing earnings per equity share 217
Basic 22085 639 447 2285 616 160 2285610 264
Diluted 2,286,396, 745 2285718854 2285642940

The accompanying noles farm an inlegral part of the consolidaled financial statements.

Infosys Limited and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
{Dollars in millions except equity share data)

Shares ™ Share Share Retained Other Cash Other Total
capitalpremium earningsReserves Flow components equity
Hedge of equity attributable

Reserve to equity

holders of

the

company
Balance as of April 1,

2014 571,402,566 64 T04 B892 - - (1.72T) 7.933
Changes in equity for
the year ended March

31, 2018

Increase in share
capital on account of
bonus issue "' (Refer to

Mate 2.12) 571,402 566 45 - - - - - 45

Amount  whlized  for
bonus issue "' (Refer
to Mate 2.12) = = (45) i 2 e = (45)
Re—measurement  of
the netl defined benefit
labilty § asset, nel of
tax effect (Refer o

Mate 2.1 and 216 - - - = - - (8) (8}
Dividends  (including

corporate dividend tax) - - = {815) - = - {815}
Fair value chamges on - - - - - - 14 14
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investments (Refer fo
Mote 2.2 and 2.16), net
aof tax

Met profit

Foreign currency
translation

2,013

(375)

2013

{375)

Balance az of March

31,2015 1,142,805,132

108

10,080

(2,096)

8,762

Changes in equity for
the year ended March
31,2018

Shares  issued on
exercise ol employes
stock options

Increase  in share
capital on accouwnt of
bonus issue{Refer to
Hote 2.12)

Amount  uiiized  for
bonus issue™ (Refer to
Note 2.12)

Transfer to other
reserves  (Refer note
2.12)

Transfer from  other
resenves on  utilization
{Refer note 2.12)
Employese stock
compensation expense
{refer o note 2.15)

Fair valwe changes on
investments, net of
fanes
Re-measurement of the
net  defined  benefit
liability / asset, net of
tax effect (Refer fo
Note 2.11 and 2.16)

10,824

1,142,805 132

(90)

(B9)

(89)
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Dividends (inchuding
corporate dividend tax)
Net Praofit

Foreign currency

translation

(1,059)
2,052

(436)

(1.058)
2,052

(436)

Balance as of March

3, 2018 2,285621,088

198

570

11,083

2.528)

8,324

Changes in equity for
the year ended Mareh
3, 2017

Cumulative impact of
Rewersal of unrealized
gain on guoted debl
securifies on  adoption
of IFRS 8 (Refer note
22

Shares  issued  on
exercise of employes
stock options

Transfer 1o other
reserves  (Refer  note
2.12)

Transfer from other
reserves on  utilizaton
{Refer note 2.12)
Employee stock
compensation expense
(refer 1o note 2.15)

Fair value changes on
derivatives designated
as cash flow hedge, net
of taxes (Refer note
2.3)

Equity instruments
through other
comprehensive income,
net of taxes (Refer note
2:2and 2.16)

34 062

17

(142)

142

142

(142}
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Fair  valuation ol
investments, net ol
taxes (Refer nole 22
and 2 16)
Re-measurement of the
net  defined  benefit
hability | asset, net of
tax effect (Refer to
Mote 2.11 and 2.16)
Dividends  (including

corporate dividend tax)
Met profit

Foreign CLUITENCY
translation

- [1,033)
- 240

{2 i2)
] ]
- (1,083)
- 2,140
198 188

Balance as of March

.27 2.285,656.160

58T 12190

{2,345) 10,637

" net of freasury shares

= exciudes freasury shares of 11,289,514 as of March 31, 2017, 11,323,576 as of March 31, 2016 and
5,667 200 as of March 31, 2015 and 2 833 600 Apni 1, 2074, held by consolidated trust

The accompanying noles form an infegral pant of the consolidaled financial stalements

Infosys Limited and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended March 31,

2017

{Drollars in millions)

2018 2015
Qperating activities:
Met profit 2,140 2052 2,013
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to
net cash provided
activities:
Depreciation and amortizabon 2Tand 28 254 272 175
Income from investments (51) (27 (48)
Income tax expense 216 834 795 205
Effect of exchange rate changes on assels
and liabilities ] 10 15
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Deferred  consideration  peraining  to
acgursition

Impairment loss on financial assets

Other adjustments

Changes in working capital

Trade receivables and unbilled revenue
Prepayments and other assets

Trade payables

Client deposits

Unearmned revenus

Other liabilities and provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Net cash provided by operating
activities

Investing activities:

Expenditure on property, plant and
equipment, net of sale proceeds, inchuding
changes in retenton money and capital
creditors

Invesiment in associate

Loans to employees

Payment for acquisition of business, net of
cash acquired

Payment of contingent conssderation
pertaining 1o acquisition of business
Deposits placed with corporation

Income from nvestments

Invesiment in quoted debt secunties
Redemption of quoted debt secunties
Investment in  equity and preference
securibes

Investment in others

Investment in certificates of deposit
Redemption of cenificates of deposit
Investment in kguid mutual funds and fixed
malturity plan securities

Redemption of liquid mutual funds and fixed

29 i 23 41
20 {7 29

29 26 12

(260) (252) (248)

{70} (220} 81}

{3 a7 (3)

1 - (2)

66 43 45

(24 48 103

2.942 2,754 2,858

2,18 (B43) (8032) {1,102}
2,099 1,862 1,756

25and 2.7 (411) (413) (367)
- - {15)

4 {11} (1)

- (17} (206)

(5] - -

(25) (22) 22}

3z 26 54

(6238) {46) -

1 i it

{10} {12} -

) (3) -

{1,187} - -

i i 135

(8,083) {3,576} (3,006)

7.759 3,800 4123
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matunty plan securities

Net cash used in investing activities (2,54T) (474) (205)
Financing activities:

Fayment of dnadends (including corparate

dividend tax) (1,032) {1,058) {815)
Met cash used in financing activities (1,032} (1.058) (815)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

and cash equivalents a4 (253) (208)
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents (1,480) 328 736
Cash and cash equivalents. at the beginning 21 4 035 4 BED 4311
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 21 3,489 4,935 4,859
Supplementary information:

Restricted cash balance 21 88 74 58

The accampanying notes fomm an infegral part of the consolidated fnancial statements

Netes to the Conseolidated Financial Statements

1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policles

1.1 Company overview

Infosys is a leading provider in consulting, technofogy, outsourcing and next-generation services. Along with
its subsidianies, Infosys provides Business T services (eomphnaing application development and maintenance,
independent validation, infrastructure management, engineering services comprising product engineering and
life cycle solutions and business process management), Consuling and systems mtegralion serices
{comprising consulting, enterprise solutions, systems integration and advanced technologies), Products,
business platforms and solutions to accelerate intellectual property-led innovation including Finacle, its
banking solution; and offerings in the areas of Analytics, Cloud, and Digital Transformation.

Infosys together with its subsidiares and controfled trusts s herein after referred to as the "Group”
The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at
Bengaluru, Karnataka, India. The Company has its pnmary listings on the BSE Limsted and National Stock

Exchange in India. The Company’s American Depositary Shares representing equity shares are akso listed on
the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE), Eurenext London and Euronext Pans.
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The Group's consclidated financial statements are autharized for issue by the company's Board of Directors
on June 12, 2017.

1.2 Basiz of preparation of financial statements

These consolidaled financial statements have been prepared in compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IFRS), under the histoncal
cost convention on the accrual basis except for cerain financial instruments which have been measured at
fair values. Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
fimancial statements.

As the guarter and year figures are taken from the source and rounded fo the nearest digits, the figures
already reported for all the quariers during the year might not always add up to the year figures reporied in
this statement.

1.3 Basis of consolidation

Infosys consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the company, its controlled trusts and its subsidianes, Control exists when the parent
has power over the entity, is exposed, or has nghts, to vanable returms from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those retims by using s power over the enlity. Power is demonstrated through
existing nghts that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity’s
retums. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences until the date control ceases.

The financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and intra-group
balances and transactions including unrealized gain / koss from such transactions are elminated upon
consolidation. These financial statemenis are prepared by applying uniform accounting policies in use al the
Group. Non-controlling interests which represent part of the net profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries
that are not, directly or indirectly, owned or controlled by the company, are excluded.

Associales are entities over which the group has significant influence but not control. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The investment is initially recognized at
cost, and the carmying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the investor's share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the acguisition date. The group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acguisition.

1.4 Use of estimates

219/323

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn



The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimales,
judgments and assumplions. These estmates, judgments and assumptions affect the applicaton of
aceounting polickss and the reported amounts of assets and Rabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the penod. Applcation of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates mvalving complex and
subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in Note

1.5. Accounting esimates could change from period fo penod. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Appropriate changes in estmates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in
which changes are made and, i matenal, thew effects are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

1.5 Critical accounting estimates

a. Revenue recognition

The group uses the percentage-of.completion method in accounting for its fixed-price contracts. Use of the
percentage-of-completion method reguires the group 1o estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a
proportion of the total efforts or costs to be expended. Efforts or cosis expended have been used o measure
progress towards completion as there is a direct relationshap between input and productivity. Provisions for
estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the penod in which such losses become
probable based on the expected contract estimates at the reporting date.

b. Income taxes

The: company’s two majpor tax junisdictions are India and the US| though the company also files tax retums in
other overseas junsdictions. Significant judgments are invalved in determining the provision for income taxes,
inchuding amount expected to be pardfrecovered for uncertain tax pasitions (also refer (o Note 2.16).

c. Business combinations and intangible assets

Business combinations are accounted for using IFRS 3 (Revised), Business Combinations. IFRS 3 requires
the denlifiable ntangible assets and contingent consideration to be fair valued in order to ascertain the net
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent lkabiliies of the acquiree. Significant estmates are
required to be made in determining the value of contingent consideration and intangible assets. These

valuations are conducted by independent valuation expers.

d. Property, plant and equipment
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Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in
respect of penodic depreciabion s denved afler delermining an estimate of an assel's expected useful ife and
the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of the Group's assets are
determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed perodically, including at each
financial year end. The ives are based on histoncal expenence with similar assels as well as anticipation of
future evenis, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

e. Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impaiment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the recoverable
amount of a cash generating unit is less than i#s carrying amount based on a number of factors including
operaling results, business plans, fulure cash flows and economic conditions. The recoverable amount of
cash generating units is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The
goodwill impairment test is performed at the level of the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating
units which are benefiting from the synergies of the acquisition and which represents the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount, Key assumptions on
which management has based ite determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth
rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into
account past expenence and represent management's best estimate about future developments

1.8 Revenue recognition

The company denves revenues primarly from software development and related services and from the
licensing of software products. Arrangements with customers for software related services are mainly either
on a fised-price, fed-timeframe or on a ime-and-material basis.

Revenue on time-and-matenal confracts are recognized as the related services are performed and revenue
from the end of the last llling to the balance sheet date i recognized as unbilled revenues. Revenue from
fived-price, fixed-imeframe confracts, where there is no uncerfainty as to measurement or collectability of
consideration, is recognized as per the percentage-of-completion method, When there is uncertainty as to
measurement of ultimate collectability, revenue recognition 1s postponed until such uncertanty s resolved.
Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there i a direct
relationship between input and productivity. Provisions for estimated bosses, if any, on uncompleted contracts
are recorded in the penod in which such losses become probable based on the current contract estimates.
Costs and earmings in excess of billings are classified as unbilled revenue whike billings in excess of costs and
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eamings are classified as uneamed revenue. Deferred contract costs are amorized over the term of the
contract. Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the underlying maintenance

arrangement.

In arangements for software development and related services and maintenance services, the company has
applied the gudance n [AS 18, Revenue, by applying the revenue recognition crlena for each separately
wentifiable component of a single transaction. The arrangements generally meet the cnitenia for conssdering
software development and related services as separately wentifiable components. For allocating the
consideration, the company has measured the revenue in respect of each separable component of a
tramsaction at its fair value, n accordance with principles given in IAS 18, The price that i regularly changed
for am itern when sold separately is the best evidence of its fair value. In cases where the company is unable
to establish objective and reliable evidence of fair value for the software development and related services,
the company has used a residual method to allocate the arrangement consideration. In these cases the
balance of the consideration, after allocating the fair values of undelivered components of a transacton has
been allocated to the delivered components for which specific fair values do not exist,

License fee revenues are recognized when the general revenue recogniion cntena given in 1AS 18 are mel
Amrangements to deliver software products generally have three elements: license, implementation and
Annual Technical Services (ATS). The company has applied the principles given in 1AS 18 to account for
revenues from these multiple element arrangements. Objective and reliable ewdence of fair value has been
established for ATS. Objective and reliable evidence of fair value is the price charged when the element is
sold separately. When other services are provided in conjunction with the Bcensing ammangement and objective
and reliable evidence of their fair values have been established, the revenue from such conmtracts are
allocated o each component of the contract in a manner, whereby revenue is deferred for the undelvered
services and the residual amounts are recognized as revenue for delivered elements. In the absence of
objective and reliable evidence of fair value for implementation, the entire arrangement fee for license and
implementation s recognized using the percentage-of-complebon method as the implementation is performed.
Revenue from client training, support and other services ansing due to the sale of software products is
recognized as the services are performed. ATS revenue is recognized rateably over the period in which the
services are rendened.

Advances received for services and products are reported as client deposits until all conditions for revenue
recognition are met

The company accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue
based on the ratable allocation of the discounts! incentives amount fo each of the underlying revenue
transaction that results in progress by the customer towards eaming the discount’ incentive. Also, when the
level of discount vanes with increases in levels of revenue transactions, the company recognizes the liability
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based on its estimate of the customer's future purchases. If it is probable that the criteria fior the discount will
not be met, or if the amount thereof cannot be estimated rehably, then discount is not recognized until the
paymenl 15 probable and the amount can be estimaled rebably. The company recognizes changes in the
estimated amount of obligations for discounts in the penod in which the change occurs. The discounts are
passed on to the customer either as direct payments or as a reduction of payments due from the customer

The company presents revenues nel of value-added taxes in its statement of comprehensive income.

1.7 Property. plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Costs
directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized untl the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as

inlended by management. The group depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-ine method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Buildings : 22 - 25 years
Plant and machinery 5 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Fumiture and fixtures 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful ives and residual values are reviewed pericdically, including at each financial
year end. (Refer to note 2.7)

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance shest
date and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under “Capital work-in-progress’.
Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the statement of
comprehensive income when incurned. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eminated from the
financial statements upon sale of retifement of the asset and the resullant gains of losses are recognized in
net profit in the statement of comprehensive income, Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the
camying value or the fair value less cost to sell

1.8 Business combinations

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of IFRS 3
{Revised), Business Combinations.
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The cost of an acquisition i measured at the fair value of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued
and labdlites incurred or assumed at the date of acqusition, which 15 the date on which contrel s transfermed
to the Growp. The cost of acguisition also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. ldentifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
insbially at their fair value on the date of acquisition.

Business combinations between enfities under common control is outside the scope of IFRS 3 (Revised),
Business Combinations and is accounted for at carrying value,

Transaction ©osts that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination such as finders’ fees, legal

fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees are expensed as incurred.

1.9 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the cost of business acquisition in excess of the Group's interest in the nel fairr value of
dentiiable assets, labilities and contingent labiliies of the acquiree. When the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired exceeds the cost of business acquisition, a gain
is recognized immediately in net profit in the statement of comprehensive income, Goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated imparment losses.

1.10 intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and mpairment. Intangible assets are
amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that
they are available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on @ number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the
stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures
required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and useful ives are
reviewed penodically including at each financial year end.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development costs are expensed as incumed
unless technical and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are
probable, the Company has an intenton and ability 1o complete and use or sell the software and the costs can
be measured rehably. The costs which can be capitalized include the cost of matenal, direct labour, overhead
costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use. Research and development
cosis and software development costs imcurmed under contractual amangements with customers are
accounted a5 cost of sales.
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1.11 Financial instruments

Effective April 1, 2016, the group has elected to early adopt IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments considering April 1,
2015 as the date of inttial application of the standard even though the stpulated effective date for adoption s
April 1, 2018

As per IFRS 8, the group has classified its financial assets into the following categories based on the business
model for managing those assels and the confractual cash flow characteristics:

« Financial assets camied at amortised cost

« Financal assets fair valueed through other comprehensive incame

+ Financial assets fair valued through profit and loss

The adophon of IFRS 9 did not have any other materal impact on the consolidaled financial stalements,
hence prior period figures have not been restated and the cumulative impact has been recorded in other
comprehensive ncome for the year ended March 31, 2017. The impact on account of adoplion of IFRS 9 s
given in Note 2.2

1.11.1 Initial recognitien

The group recognizes financial assets and financial Babilites when it becomes a party o the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition,

except for trade receivables which are intially measured at transaction prce. Transaction costs that are
directly attnbutable to the acquisiion or issue of financial assets and financial habilites that are not at fair

value through profit or loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of
financial asseis are accounted for at trade date.

1.11.2 Subsequent measurement

a. Non-derivative financial instruments

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective = o hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual lerms of the

financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount cutstanding.
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(i} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subseguently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting confractual cash flows and seling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assel gree nise on specified dates o cash flows that
are solely paymenis of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in cases where the
Group has made an imevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified
as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income
{iff) Finaneial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categones are subsequently fair valued through

profit or loss.

(iv) Financial labilities

Financial labilites are subsequently carried atl amortized cost using the elfective interest method, except for
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value
throwgh profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date,
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 1o the short maturity of these instruments.

b Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds dervative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to
mitigate the nsk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these
contracts is generally a bank

(I} Finanelal azzets or financial Nabllives, at fair value through profit or loss,

This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the group believes that these denvatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may
not qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS 8, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either not
designated a hedge, or is 50 designated but is neffective as per IFRS 9, is categonzed as a financial assel or

financial liabality, at fair value through profit or loss.

Denvatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attnbutable transaction costs
are recognized in net profit in the statement of comprehensive income when incurred. Subseguent 1o initial
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recognition, these denvatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange
gains or losses are included in other ncome. Assets/ habiliies in this category ane presented as current
asseta/current liabilities if they are either held for trading of are expected to be realized within 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

{ii} Cash flow hedge

The group designates certain foreign exchange forward and options contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate
the nisk of foreign exchange exposure on highly probable forecast cash transactions.,

When a denivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the denvative is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow
hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the demvalive is recognized
immediately in the net profit in the statement of comprehensive income. If the hedging instrument no longer
meets the critena for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging
instrument expires or B sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging
reserve until the forecasted transaction occurs. The cumulative gain o loss previously recognized in the cash
flow hedging reserve is transferred to the net profit in the statement of comprehensive income upon the
occurrence of the related forecasted transaction. If the forecasted transaction i1s no longer expected o ocour,
then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve 15 reclassified 1o net profit in the statement of

comprehensive income

¢, Share capital and treasury shares

{ij Ordinary Shares

Ordnary shares are classiied as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary
shares and share oplions are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

{ii} Treasury Shares

When any entity within the Group purchases the company's ordinary shares, the consideration paid including

any directly attibutable incremental cost is presented as a deduction from total equity, until they are cancelled,

sold or reissued. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount recenved is recognized
as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction s transfemred tof from share
premium.
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1.11.3 Derecognition of financial instruments

The group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractisal nghts to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IFRS 9. A
financial liability (or @ part of a financial liabdlity) is derecognized from the group’s balance sheet when the
abligation specified in the contract is discharged of cancelled or expires.

1.12 Fair value of financial instruments

I determmining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Group uses a vanety of methods and assumpbons
that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine
fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market pnces and dealer quotes. All
methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually

be realized.

Refer to Note 2.3 in for the disclosure on carrying value and fair value of financial assels and liablities. For
financial assets and labilities maturing within one year from the balance sheet date and which are nol carmed
at fair value, the carrying amounis approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

1.13 Impairment

a. Financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the fimancial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to ifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected
credi losses are measured at an amount egual o the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of
expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the
amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain o loss in statement of profit or
loss.

b. Non-financial assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill s tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that goodwill may be
impaired, relying on a number of factors ncluding operating results, business plans and future cash flows. For
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the purpose of imparment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Group's
cash generating units (CGU) or groups of CGU's expected to benefit from the synergies ansing from the
business combination. A CGU is the smalles! ientifiable group of assels thal generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. Impaiment occurs when the
carmying amount of a CGLU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGLU. The
recoverable amount of a CGU 1= the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and s value-in-use. Value-in-usse
is the present value of future cash flows expected o be derived from the CGU.

Total impairment loss of a CGLU is allocated first to reduce the carmying amount of goodwill allocated fo the
CGLU and then o the other assels of the CGLU pro-rata on the basis of the carmying amount of each asset in
the CGU_ An impairment loss on goodwill is recognized in net profit in the statement of comprehensive income
and 5 not reversed in the subsequent period

(i} Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equapment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that therr carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (ie. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value-in-wse) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the assel belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in net profit in the statement of
comprehensne income s measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assels exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in net profit in the statement of
comprehensive income if there has been a change in the estimates wsed to determine the recowerable
amount. The carmying amount of the asset is increased o its revised recoverable amount, provided that this
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated
amortization of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

1.14 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
o settle the oblhigation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-lax

rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value of money and the risks specific to the lability.

a. Post sales client support
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The group provides its clients with a fixed-penod post-sales support for comections of errors and support on all
its fixed-prce, foed-timeframe contracts. Costs associated with such support services are accrued at the time
redated revenues are recorded and included in cost of sales. The group estimates such costs based on
histarical experience and estimates are reviewed on a periodic basis for any material changes in assumptions
and likelihood of accurrence.

b. Onerous contracts

Provsions for onerous contfacts are recognized when the expected benghils o be derived by the Group from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established the Group recognizes
any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

1.15 Foreign currency

Functional currency

The functional currency of Infosys, Infosys BPO, EdgeVerve, Skava and controlled trusts is the Indian rupee
The functional currencies for Infosys Australia, Infosys China, Infosys Mexico, Infosys Sweden, Infosys Brasil,
Infosys Public Services, Infosys Shanghai, Infosys Lodestone, Infosys Consulting Fte Lid, Infosys Amencas,
Infosys Nova, Panaya, Kalidus and Noah are the respective local cumencies. These financial statements are
presented in U5 dollars {rounded off to the nearest millian).

Transactions and franslations

Foregn-curfency denominated monetary assels and labilibes are translated into the relevant funcbonal
currency at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. The gains or losses resulling from such
translations are included in net profit in the statement of comprehensive income. Non-monetary assets and
non-monetary liabilites denominated in a foreign curency and measured at fair value are translated at the
exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and
non-monetary labilibes denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at
the exchange rate prevalent at the date of fransaction,

Transaction gains or losses realized upon setlement of foreign currency transactons are included in
determining net profit for the peniod in which the transaction is setiled. Revenue, expense and cash-flow items
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denominated in foreign cumencies are translated into the relevant functional cumencies using the exchange
rate in effect an the date of the transaction.

The translation of financial statements of the entities of the group from functional curency to the presentation
currency is performed for assets and liabilities using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date and
for revenue, expense and cash-flow items using the average exchange rate for the respective penods. The
gains or losses resulting from such translabon are included in currency translation reserves under other
compaonents of equity. When a subsidiary is disposed of, in full, the relevant amount is transferred to net profit
in the statement of comprehensive income, However when a change in the parent's ownership does not result
in koss of control of a subsidiary, such changes are recorded through edquity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabdlities of the foresgn entity and translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date.

1.16 Earnings per equity share

Basic eamings per equity share is compuled by dividing the net profit attnbutable to the equity holders of the
company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted eamings
per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attnbutable to the equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for derving basic earmings per equity share and also
the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares, The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the
equity shares been actually issuwed at fair value (ie. the average market value of the outstanding equity
shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the penod, unless
issued at a later date. Diutve potential equity shares are determimed independently for each penod
presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all penods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of
the financal statements by the Board of Directors.

1.17 Inceme taxes

Income tax expense compnses current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense s recognized in net
profit in the statement of comprehensive income except 1o the extent that it relates to lems recognized directly
in equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and
prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authontes, using
the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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Deferred income tax assets and labilties are recognized for all temporary differences anising between the tax
bases of assets and habilities and their carrying amounis in the financial statements except when the deferred
mncome tax anses from the initial recognition of goodwill or an assel of hability in a transaction thal = nol a
business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced fo the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefitl will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and labilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years
in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered of settled. The effect of changes in tax
rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that
includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the
extent that it is probable that fulure taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed
eamings of subsidiaries and branches where it is expected that the earnings of the subsidiary or branch will
not be distnbuted in the foreseeable fulure. The group offsets cument tax assets and current tax liabilites,
where it has a legally enforceable right 1o set off the recognized amounts and where it ntends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly. Tax benefits of deductions eamed
on exercise of employee share options in excess of compensation charged to income are credited 1o share
premium.

1.18 Employee benefits

1.18.1 Gratuity

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering eligible
employees of Infosys and its Indian subsidianes. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested
employess at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the
respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment with the Group.

Liabilies with regard 1o the Gratusty Plan are determined by actuanal valuation, performed by an independent
actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The Company fully contributes all
ascertained Rabilities to the Infosys Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust (the Trust). In case of Infosys
BPO and EdgeVerve, contributions are made 1o the Infosys BPO's Employees' Gratuity Fund Trust and
EdgeVernve Systems Limited Employess' Gratuity Fund Trust, respectively. Trustees administer contributions
made to the Trusts and contrbutions are invested in @ scheme with Life Insurance Corporation of India as
permitted by law of India.
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The Group recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability.
Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit kabiity / asset are recognized in other
comprehensive income and nol reclassifed o profil and loss in subsegquent penod. The actual return of the
portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation is recognized in other comprehensive income, The effect of any plan amendments
are recognized mn nel profits in the statement of comprehensive Ncomie.

1.18.2 Superannuation

Certain emplovees of Infosys, Infosys BPO and EdgeVerve are participants in a defined contribution plan. The
Group has no further obligations to the Plan beyond its monthly contributions which are periodically
contributed to a trust fund, the corpus of which is invested with the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

1.18.3 Provident fund

EBlgible employees of Infosys recerve benefits from a prowvdent fund, which s a defined benefil plan. Both the
ehgible employes and the company make monthly coninbutions to the provident fund plan equal to a specilfied
percentage of the covered employee's salary. The company contributes a poriion of the contributions to the
Infosys Limited Employees' Provident Fund Trust, The trust invests in specific designated instruments as
permitted by Indan law. The remaining porbon is contnbuted to the government administered pension fund.
The rate at which the annual interest is payable to the benefcianes by the trust is beming administered by the
government. The company has an obligation to make good the shorfall, if any, between the return from the
invesiments of the Trust and the notified interest rate

In respect of Indian subsidianes, eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the eligible employee and the respeciive companies make monthly contributions to this
provident fund plan equal o a specihed percentage of the covered employee's salary. Amounts collected
under the provident fund plan are deposited in 3 government administered provident fund. The companies
have no further obligation to the plan beyand their monthly confributions.

1.18.4 Compensated absences

The Group has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in
nature. The expected cost of accumulatng compensated absences 15 determined by actuanal valuabion
perormed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the
additional amount expected to be paidfavailed as a result of the unused enfitement that has accumulated at
the balance sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the penod in
which the absences occur.
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1.19 Share-based compensation

The Group recognizes compensation expense relating to share-based payments in net profit using a fair-value
in accordance with IFRS 2, Share-Based Payment. The estimated fair value of awards is charged to income
on a straight-line bases over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if
the award was in-substance, mulliple awards with a corresponding increase to share premium.

1.20 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.21 Dividends

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim
dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the company's Board of Directars.

1.22 Operating profit

Operating profit for the Group is computed considering the revenues, net of cost of sakes, selling and
marketing expenses and administrative expenses.

1.23 Other income

Other mcome s comprsed prmardy of mterest income, dividend mcome, ganfloss on mvestments and
exchange gainfess on forward and opliors contracts and on translation of other assels and liabdlites. Interest
income is recognized using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established

1.24 Leases
Leases under which the group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as

finance leases. When acquired, such assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum
lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower, Lease payments under operating leases are
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recognized as an expense on a straight line basis in net profit in the statement of comprehensive income over
the lease term.

1.25 Government grants

The Group recognizes govemment grants only when there is reasonable assurance thal the conditions
attached to them shall be complied with, and the grants will be received. Govemnment grants related to assets
are treated as deferred income and are recognized in net profit n the statement of comprehensive ncome on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the assel. Govermment grants related to revenue are
recognized on a systematic basis in net profit in the statement of comprehensive income over the periods
necessany to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate.

1.26 Recent accounting pronouncements

1.28.1 Standards issued but not yet effective

IFRS 1§ Revenue from Contract with Customers: In May 2014, the International Accounting Standards
Board (LASB) issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers. The core principle of the new standard
is that an entity should recognize revenue lo depict the transfer of promised goods of sefvices to cusbomers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects fo be enfifled in exchange for those
goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows ansing from the entity’s contracts with customers

The standard permits two possible methods of fransition:
» Full retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be apphed refrospectively to each prior

reporting period presented in accordance with 1AS 8- Accounting Paolicies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Ermors
= Cumulative catch-up approach - Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard
recognized at the date of initial application

The effective date for adoption of IFRS 15 is annual penods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, though
early adoption is permitted.

The Group does not plan to early adopt IFRS 15 and will adopt the same on Apnil 1, 2018 by using the full
retrospective transition method to restate each prior reporting period presented
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The group denives revenues primarily from software development and related services and from the licensing
of saftware products and is currently evaluating the effect of IFRS 15 on its consolidated financial statements
and related disclosures.

IFRS 18 Leases. On January 13, 2016, the Internabtional Accounting Standards Board issued the final version
of IFRS 16, Leases. IFRS 16 will replace the existing leases Standard, |45 17 Leases, and related
Interpretatons. The Standard sels out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties o a contract e, the lessee and the lessor. IFRS 16 introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabiities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the undertying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are
charged to the statement of comprehensive income. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure
requairements for lessees. IFRS 16 substantally cames forward the lessor accounting requirements in LAS 17.

The effective date for adoption of IFRS 16 is annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, though
early adoption is permitted for companies applying IFRS 15 Revenue from Coniracts with Cusiomers. The
Group is yet to evaluate the requirements of IFRS 16 and the impact on the consclidated financial statements

IFRIC 22, Forelgn currency transactions and Advance consideration: On December 8 2016, the
Imternational Accounting Standards Board (JASB) issued IFRS interpretation IFRIC 22, Foreign cumency
transactons and Advance consderabion which clarifies the dale of the transacton for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an
entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The effective date for adoption of

IFRIC 22 is annual reporting penods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, though early adoption ks permitled.

The Group is cumently evaluating the effect of IFRIC 22 on the consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: In June 2017, the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASBE) issued IFRS interpretation IFRIC 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be
apphed while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates, when there is unceriainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12, According to IFRIC
23, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authonty accepling each tax treaiment, or
group of tax treatments, that the companies have wsed or plan to use in their intome tax filing which has to be
considered o compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when delermining
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible metheds of transition:

+ Full retrospective approach - Under this approach, IFRIC 23 will be applied retrospectively to each prior
reporting period presented in accordance with 1AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
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Estimates and Ermors
+ Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying IFRIC 23 recognized by adjusting equity on
initial application, without adjusting comparatives

The effective date for adoption of IFRIC 23 is annual pencds beginning on or after January 1, 2019, though
early adoption iz permitted. The Group is vet o evaluate the effect of IFRIC 23 on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS T, Statement of cash flows: In January 2016, the Intematonal Accounting Standards
Board issued the amendments to IAS 7, requinng the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities ansing from financing activities, incleding both changes
ansing from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconcibation between the opening
and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabaities ansing from fnancing activities, to meet the disclosure
requirement. The effective date for adoption of the amendments to IAS 7 is annual reporling perods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017, though eary adoption is permitted, The Group has evaluated the
disclosure requirements of the amendment and the effect on the consolidated financial statements is not
expected to be maternial.

Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based payment: In June 2016, the International Accounting Standards
Board issued the amendments to IFRS 2 providing specific guidance for measurement of cash-settled
awards, modification of cash-setled awards and awards that inclede a net settlement feature in respect of
withholding taxes. It clarifies that the fair value of cash-settled awards is determimed on a basis consistent with
that used for equity-settled awards. Markel-based performance conditions and non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair values', but non-market performance conditions and senvice vesting conditions are
reflected in the estimate of the number of awards expected to vest. Also, the amendment clarifies that if the
terms and conditions of a cash-seltled share-based payment transaction are modified with the result that it
becomes an equity-settied share-based payment transachion, the transaction is accounted for as such from
the date of the modificaton. Further, the amendment requires the award that includes a net settlement feature
in respect of withholding taxes to be treated as equity-settled in its entirety, The cash payment fo the tax
authonty 15 treated as if it was part of an equity settlement. The effective date for adoption of the amendments
to IFRS 2 iz annual reporing periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, though early adoption is
permitted. The Group is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the impact on the consolidated

financial statemenis

2 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

2.1 Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
{Dollars in mallvores )
As of

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Cash and bank deposits 2298 4,139
Deposits with financial institution 1,183 o6
3,489 4935

Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 inclede restricted cash and bank
balances of 388 million and $74 milion, respectively. The restrictions are primarily on account of cash and
bank balances held by revocable trusts controlied by the company, bank balances held as margin money
deposits against guarantees and balances held in unpasd dividend bank accounts.

The deposits maintained by the Group with banks and financial instrlution compnse of time deposits, which
can be withdrawn by the Group at any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal,

The table below provides details of cash and cash equivalents:
{Dollars in millions)
As of

March 21, 2017 March 31, 2016

Current accounts

AMZ Bank, Taiwan -

Banamex Bank, Mexico -

Banamex Bank, Mexico (U5, Dollar account) 1

Bank of America, USA 159 1
Bank of America, Mexico a

Bank of Zachodni WBK 3.4, Poland

Barclays Bank, UK -

Bank Leumi, lsrael {U.S. Dolkar Account)
Bank Leumi, Israel {Israeli Shegel account)
BNP Panbas Bank, Norway

China Merchants Bank, China

Citibank MN.A_, Ausfrala

Citibank N.A_ Brazi

Cifibank M.A_, China 10 10
Citibank N_A_, China (U5, Dollar account ) 1
Citibank N_A_ Costa Rica 1 -
Citibank M_&_, Japan 2 2
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Citibank N A, New Zealand

Citibank N.A., South Africa

Citibank N.A,, USA

Commerzbank, Germany

Crédit Industral et Commercial Bank, France
Deutsche Bank, Belgium

Deutsche Bank, Malaysia

Deutsche Bank, Czech Republic

Deutsche Bank, Czech Republic {Euro account)
Deutsche Bank, Czech Republic (U.5. dollar account)
Deutsche Bank, France

Deutsche Bank, Germany

Deutsche Bank, India

Deutsche Bank, Netherlands

Deutsche Bank, Philippines

Deutsche Bank, Philippines (U.5. dellar account)
Deutsche Bank, Poland

Deutsche Bank, Poland (Euro account)
Deutsche Bank, Singapore

Deutsche Bank, Switzerand

Deutsche Bank, United Kingdom

Deutsche Bank-EEFC {Australian Dollar account)
Deutsche Bank-EEFC {Swiss Franc account)
Deutsche Bank-EEFC {Euro account)

Deutsche Bank-EEFC (U S. dollar account)

Deutsche Bank-EEFC, India {United Kingdom Found Sterling account)

Deutsche Bank, USA

HSBC Bank, Brazil

ICICI Bank, India

ICICI Bank-EEFC, India (U5, dollar account)
ICIC] Bank - Unpaid dividend account
Nordbanken, Sweden

Raiffeizen Bank, Czech Republic
Raiffeisen Bank, Romania

Royal Bank of Canada, Canada

State Bank of India, India

FPunjab Mational Bank, India

Sticon Valley Bank, USA
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Silcon Valley Bank (Euro account)

Silicon Valley Bank (United Kingdom Pownd Sterling account)

LInion Bank of Switzedand, AG

Union Bank of Switzerland, AG (LS. dollar account)
Union Bank of Switzertand, AG (Euro account)

Union Bank of Switzerand AG, (United Kingdom Pound Sterling account)

‘Wells Fargo Bank M.A., USA
Westpac, Austraka

Deposit accounts

Andhra Bank, India

Axis Bank, India

Bank BGZ BNP Panbas 5 A
Bank of India, India

Barclays Bank

Canara Bank, India

Cenfral Bank of Indsa, India
Citibank, India

Carporation Bank, India
Deutsche Bank, Poland
HDFC Bank, India

HSBC Bank

ICIC] Bank, India

IDEI Bank, India

IDFC Bank

Indusind Bank, India

Indian Overseas Bank, India
Jammu and Kashmir Bank, India
Kotak Mahindra Bank, India
Criental Bank of Commerce, India
Punjab Mational Bank, India
State Bank of India, India
South Indian Bank, India
Standard Chartered Bank
Syndicate Bank, India
Union Bank of India, India
Vijaya Bank, India

Yes Bank, India

3 10

- 3

- 2

- 4

1 2

- 1

5 3

- 1
318 203
4 143
181 202
28 i
- 1
127 £
40 239
I 232
26 13
i 1594
11 38
72 400
7T -
751 B34
270 287
31 L
29 38
i 189

- 4
83 B1
= 297

i 3

- 287
69 3
T -
a 191

- 21
it 46
] 100
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Dipﬁiil‘.‘ with financial institution
HDFC Limited, India
LIC Housing Finance Limited

Tetal

1.978 3.836
1,085 796

108 -
1,193 796
3,489 4,935

2.2 Investments

The carrying value of investiments are as follows:

{Dollars in millions)

As of

Mareh 21, 2017 March 31, 2016

Current
Amortized cost
Quoted debt securities:
Cost
Fair value through profit and loss:
Liguid mutual funds
Fair value
Fixed maturity plan securities
Fair value
Fair Value through Other comprehensive income
Queted debt securities:
Fair value
Caertificates of deposit
Fair value

Non-Current
Amaortised cost
Quated debt securities:
Cost
Fair value through Other comprehensive income
GQuoted debt securities:
Fair value
Ungquoted equity and preference securities:
Fair value
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Fair value through profit and loss
Unqueted convertible promissory note

Fair value 1 -

Fixed maturity plan securities
Fair value 63 -

Others:

Fair value 5 3
584 273
Total Investments 2,522 284
Investment camed at amortized cost 295 207
Investments carned at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,857 14
Investments carmed at fair value through profit and loss 370 13

Liguid mutual funds:

The cost and fair value of liquid mutual funds as of March 31, 2017 was $277 million and $278 million,
respectively and as of March 21, 2016 was $10 million each. The fair value is based on quoted prices.

Fixed maturity plan securities:

The cost and fair value as of March 31, 2017 is $86 milkon. The fair value is based on market observable
inputs.

Quoted debt securities carried at amortized cost:

Investment in quated debt securifies represents the inwestments made in debt secunties issued by
government and quasi gowvernment organizations. The fair value of quoted debt securities (including interest
accreed) as on March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 was $334 milkon and $257 million, respectively. The fair
value is based on the quoted prices and market observable inputs,

Quoted debt securities fair valued threugh other comprehensive income:

Investment in quoted debl securities represents investments made in non-convertible debentures ssued by
government aided institutions and financial institutions with high credit rating. The cost and fair value of
non-convertible debentures (including interest accrued) as of March 31, 2017 is $614 mallion and $813 million.
The fair value is based on quoted prices and market observable inputs. The unrealized koss of $1 million, net
of taxes of less tham %1 million, has been recognized in other comprehensive income for the year ended
March 31, 2017
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Certificates of deposit:

The cost and fair value of cerificates of deposit as of March 31, 2017 is $1,220 million and 51,218 million,
respectively. The fair value is based on market observable inputs. The unrealized loss of $1 million, net of
taxes of kess than $1 million, has been recognized n other comprehensive incame for the year ended March
3,207

Unguoted equity and preference securities:

The invested amount and fair valee of unguoted equity and preference securities of March 31, 2017 is 825
million each. The fair value is determined using Level 3 mputs like Discounted cash flows method, Market
multiples method, Oplon prcing moded, elc.

Impact on account of adoption of IFRS 9

Certan investments which were earber carmed at fair value through other comprehensive income under [AS
38, Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement are now camied at amortized cost under IFRS 9,
where the business model is o hold the asset, in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial assel grve nse, on speciiied dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount. Further, certain investments camed at fair value through other
comprehensive income under IAS 39 are now fair valued through profit and loss under IFRS 9, The impact of
such change in measurement did not have a matenal impact on the financial statements. Hence, the company
has not restated the prior penod figures and the cumulative impact has been recorded n other comprehensive
income for the year ended March 31, 2017. Accordingly, balance sheet as on Aprl 1, 2015 has not been
presented.

Accordingly, for the year ended March 31, 2017, the company has recorded, in its other comprehensive
income, a reversal of unrealized gain, net of taxes, of 5 milkion (recorded on quoted debt securities as on
Apnl, 1, 2016), with a corresponding change in investment and deferred taxes.

Further, under IFRS 9, the impairment of financial assets is measured under the 'Expected Credit Loss" (ECL)
model, which uses a dual measurement approach, under which the loss allowance is measured as either
twehoe manth expected credil losses or lifebme expected credit losses. The change in the impairment model
did not have a matenial impact on the financial stalements.

Details showing the changes in the classification and the comesponding differences on transition, in carrying
value as of Apnl 1, 2016:
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Draltars i millions

As per |AS 33 As periIFRS 9

Instrument Category Carrying value Category Carrying value
(i} Current
Ligquid mutual funds Available for Fair value

sale  financial through profit or

assets " 10 loss 10
Cuated debl securities: Avarlable for Amartized cost

sale  financial

assets "7 1 1
Todtal 11 1
{ii) Mon current
Cuated debt securities: Available for Amaorized cost

sale  financial

assets " 256 241
Unquoted equty and  preference Fair value
securities Available for through other

sale  financial comprehensme

assets | 14 income 14
Others Avaidlable for Fair value

sale  financial through profit or

assets ' 3 loss k|
Total 273 258
Tolal invesiments 284 259

' Fair value changes through other comprehensive income

2 Includes interest accrued

Details showing the changes in the classification and the corresponding differences on transiion, in carmying
value as of Apnil 1, 2015:

Dwalars in milions

As per |AS 39 As per IFRS 3
Instrument Category Carrying value Category Carrying value
(i} Current : : S :
Available for Fair valug
sale financial through profit ar
Licuid mutual furkds assels " 135 loss 135

244/323



Fixed maturnty plan securnties:
Total

(i} Nem current
Cuated debl securlies:

Unquolted  equity
SEeCurities

Total

Total investments

and  prefenrenoesabe

Available for
sake  financial
assets "

Avalable  for
sake  financial
assets

Available for

finanicial
assets

140

215

215
355

Fair alue
through  profit
and loss

Amartized cost

Fair value
through other
comprehensive

140

208

208

il

' incisdes interest accrued

2.3 Financial instruments

Fair value changes through other comprehensive income

The camying value and farr value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2017 were as Tollows:
{Dellars in mallions )
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Amaortised  Financial assets/ Financial Total Total fair
cost liabilities at fair value assetsfliabilities at fair  carrying value
through profit or loss value through OC| value
Designated Mandatory Equity Mandatory
upon initial instruments
recognition designated
upoh initial
recognition
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
[Refer o Mate 2.1) 3,489 - - - - 3,489 3,489
Investments (Refer Note 2.2)
Liquid mutual funds - - 278 - - 278 278
Fixed malurty plans - - 86 - - a6 86
Cuoted debt securities 205 - - - 813 ooe o47t
Certificates of deposit = - = & 1219 1218 1,219
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Ungquoted equity and

preference securities: - - - 25 - 26 25
Unquated invesiments
others - - 5 - - 5 5
Ungquoted convertible
Promuissony nobe: = = 1 = = 1 1
Trade receivables 1,900 = = = — 1,900 1,900
Unbilled revenue 562 - - - - 562 52
Prepaymenis and other assels
{Refer to Note 2.4) 410 - - - - 410 410
Dernvative financial
instruments - - il - 2 44 44
Total 6,656 = 406 25 1,840 §.9z7
Liabilities:
Trade payables 57 - - - - 57 57
Chenl depaosits 5 - - - - 5 [
Other  labidites  including
contingent consideration
{Refer note 2.5) TG3 - 13 - - 776 776
Total B25 - 13 - - R 1
"' On account of fair value changes including interest accrued
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categones as of March 31, 2006 were as fallows:
{Dwollars i millions)
Amortised Financial assets | Financial Total Total fair
cost liabilities at fair value assets/liabilities at fair  carrying value
through profit or loss value through OC| value
Designated Mandatary Equity Mandatary
upan initial instruments
recognition designated
upen initial
recognition
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
{Refer to Maote 2.1) 4 835 - - - = 4 535 4 535
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Investments (Refer Note 2.2)
Ligguich mutual funds

Cluoted debt securities
Unquoted equity and
preference  secunties and
athers:

Trade recevables

Linkilled revenue

Prepayments and other assets
{Refer 1o Note 2.4)

Dierivative financial

instruments.

57

1,710
457

393

14

10
257

17
1,710
457

17

Tetal

7,782

14

7,796

Liabilities:

Trade payables

Diervatne financial
instruments

Client deposits

Other  liabilities  including
cantingent consideration
[Refer note 2.5)

Total

S8

Tar
98

18

o4
817

10
2571

17
1.710
457

o4

" o account of Tair value changes mcuding interest accned

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusied) in actve markets lor identical asseis or labiliies.

Level 2 - Inputs other than guofed prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabdlity,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilites that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

Fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2017:
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Aszets

Investments in lhiquid mutuwal fumnd wnits
(Refer to Mote 2.2)

Investments in fixed maturity plans (Refer
Mote 2.2}

Investments in quoted debt securnties
{Refer to Note 2.2)

Investments in certificate of deposit (Refer
MNote 2.2}

Investments in eguity and preference
securities (Refer to Note 2.2)

Investment in unguoted investments others
(Refer Note 2.2)

Investments in convertible promissory note
(Refer to Note 2.2}

Dernvative financial instruments- gaim on
outstanding foreign exchange forward and
option contracis

Liabilities

Liability towards contingent consideration
(Refer note 2 5)°

As of March Faiir value measurement at end of the
31,2017 reparting period using
Levael 1 Level 2 Level 3
278 278 - -
86 - 86 =
a47 565 g2 -
1,219 o= 1219 2l
25 - - 25
5 4 s 5
1 - - 1
44 - 44 -
13 = = 13

* Discounted 514 million af 14.2%.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, quoted debt secunties of $17 million were transfemed from Level 1 to
Level 2 of fair value hierarchy, since these were valued based on market ohservable imputs.

A one percentage point change in the uncbservable nputs used in fair valuation of Level 3 assets and

labilities does not have a significant impact in its value.

Fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2016:

{Droliars in millions)

As of March
M, 2016

Fair value measurement at end of the
reporting period using
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Assets

Investments in hguid mwtual fund wnits
{Refer to Mate 2.2)

Investiments in  quoted debt securities
{Refer to Mote 2.2}

Investiments in eguity and preference
securities (Refer o Note 2.2)

Investment in unguoted investments others
{Refer Note 2.2)

Derivative financial instruments- gain on
outstanding foreign exchange forward and
option contracts

Liabilities

Dervative financial instruments- loss on
outstanding foreign exchange forward and
option contracts

Liability towards contingent consideration
(Refer note 2 5)"

17

Level 1

10

a7

Level 2

200

17

Level 3

ir

“Dhzcounted $20 millian at 13.7%.

A one percentage pont change in the unobservable mputs wsed in fair valuation of Level 3 assels and

liabilities does not have a significant impact in its value

The movement in contingent consideration as of March 31, 2017 from March 31, 2016 5 on account of

settiement of contingent consideration of $6 million and change in discount rates and passage of time

The movement in level 3 investments from fiscal 2016 to fiscal 2017 is on account of purchase of additional

investments during the year and change in fair value.

Income from financial assets or liabilibes is as follows:

{Dolars in milllons )

Year ended March 31,
2017 2018 2015
Interest income on financial assets camied at amortized cost 352 402 447
Interest income on financial assets fair valued throwgh other
comprehensive mcome 28 - -
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Dividend income on investments camed at fair value

through profit or loss 4 10 26

Gain [ {loss) on invesiments carmed at kr value through

profit or koss 18 - 2
402 412 475

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it o a vanety of financial risks: market risk, credit sk and liquidity risk. The
Group's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary market risk to the Group is foreign exchange risk.
The Group uses derivative fimancial mstruments o mitigate foreign exchange related nsk exposures. The
Group's exposure to credit nsk i influenced mainly by the individual charactenstic of each customer and the
concentration of sk from the top few customers.

Market risk

The Group operates internationally and a major portion of the business is fransacled n several currencies and
consequently the Group is exposed to foreign exchange nsk through ils sales and services in the United
States and elsewhere, and purchases from overseas supphiers in various foreign cumencies. The Group holds
derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to mitigate the risk of
changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The exchange rate between the Indan rupee and
foreign currencies has changed substanbally in recent years and may fluctuate substantially in the fulure.
Consequently, the results of the Group's operafions are adversely affected as the rupee appreciates/
depreciates agamnst these currencies.

The: following table analyzes foreign currency nsk from financial instruments as of March 31, 2017:

{Dollars in millions)

l.I,E.. Eum‘ uniud-nuﬂnlian. Other Total

dollars Kingdom  dellarscurrencies
Pound
Sterling
Cash and cash eguivalents 206 20 L] 28 108 368
Trade receivables 1,287 102 119 ar 108 1793
Unbilled revenue are it} 50 19 47 560
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Other assels 65 15 T ] 15 108
Trade payables (18) {5) (2 () [24) {50}
Client deposits (2 = 2 = (1) 3
Accrued expenses {147} (33 (22 {6) 23] 231
Empiloyee benefit chligations (86) (13) 3 (23) (19)  (144)
Other liabilities (94) (17) {5) (3) 42)  {181)
Het assets | (liabilities) 1.687 27 148 107 1869  2.238

The: following table analyzes foreign currency risk from financial instruments as of March 31, 2016:
(Dadlars in millions)
u.s. Eure UnitedAustralian Other Total

dollars Kingdem  dollarscurrencies

Pound

Sterling
Cash and cash equivalents 170 25 a0 26 " 342
Trade receivables 1,14 193 109 a0 105 1,638
Unbilled revenue 282 H 29 17 ia 422
Other assets 14 B 4 2 12 38
Trade payables (19) (11} (11 (1) {11} (53)
Client deposits (3) - - - (1) 4)
Accrued expenses (19 (23) (18) 5} (33)  (198)
Employee benefit obligations (87} (12) 7 (25) (19) {1500
Other liabdities (159) (20} 5 ] (32)  [222)
et assets | (liabilities) 1,220 214 131 98 160  1.813

For the years ended March 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, every percentage paoint depreciation / appreciation in
the exchange rate between the Indian rupee and the U.S. dollar has affected the company's incremental
operating margins by approximately 0.50%, 0.50% and 0.52%, respectively.

Sensitivity analysis is computed based on the changes in the income and expenses in [onegn Curmency upon
conversion into functional eurrency, due to exchange rate fluctuations between the previous reporting penod
and the current reporting period.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds denvative financial nstruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to

mitigate the nsk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these
contracts is generally a bank. These dervative financial instruments are valued based on quoted prices for
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similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the

marketplace.

The following table gives details in respect of outstanding foreign exchange forward and options contracts:

{In millions)

As of
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

Forward contracts

In Eurc 85 -
In United Kingdom Pound Stering 40 -
In Australian dollars 130 -

Option Contracts

in Eurg 40 -
Other derivatives

Forward contracts

In U5, dollars 526 510
In Evuro 114 100
In United Kingdom Pound Stering 75 65
In Australian dollars as 55
In Swiss Franc 10 25
In Singapore dollars 5 -
In Swedish Krona 50 -
Option contracts

In U.S. dollars 195 125
in Eurg 25 -
In United Kingdom Pound Stering a0 -
In Canadian dollars 13 -

The Group recognized a nel gain of $89 million, 54 millon and $85 milkon on denvabive iinancial instruments
for the year ended March 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, which are included under other income

The foreign exchange forward and option contracts mature within 12 months. The table below analyzes the
derivative financial imstruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period as of the
balance sheet date:
{Drolars in millions)
As of
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March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Nat later than one month 355 238
Later than one month and not later than three months 666G 516
Later than three moenths and not later than one year 329 157

1.350 a11

Duwring the year ended March 31, 2017, the group has designated certain foreign exchange forward contracts
as cash flow hedges to mitigate the risk of foreign exchange exposure on highly probable forecast cash
transactions. The related hedge transactions for balance in cash flow hedging reserve are expected lo occur
and reclassified to the statement of profit or koss within 3 months.

Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through penodic prospective
effectiveness assessments 1o ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and
hedging instrument, including whether the hedging instrument is expected to offset changes in cash flows of
hedged items.

If the hedge ratio for isk management purposes is no longer optimal but the sk management chjective
remains unchanged and the hedge confinues to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship will be
rebalanced by adjusting either the volume of the hedging instirument of the volume of the hedged tem so that
the hedge ratio aligns with the ratio wsed for risk management purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is
calculated and accounted for in profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing.

The following table provides the reconcibation of cash flow hedge reserve for the year ended March 31, 2017:
{Dollars in millions)

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Gain | (Loss)
Balance at the beginning of the period =
Gain ! (Loss) recognized in other comprehensive income dunng the penod 18
Amount reclassified to revenue during the period (109
Tax impact on above 2)
Balance at the end of the period 3

The group offsets a financial asset and a financial liability when it cumently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognized amounts and the group intends either to seftle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and setile the liability simultaneoushy.
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The: following table provides quantitative information about offsetting of denvative financial assets and
denvative financial habilities:
(Dellars m millions)
As of : As of
Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
Deerivative : Derivative : Dﬂi'll'lﬂ"rl. Deerivative
financial financial financial fimancial

asset liakility asset liability
Gross amount of recognized financial asset/lability 44 - 18 {2)
Amount set off - - {1} 1
Met amount presented in balance sheat 44 - 17 (1)

Credit risk

Credit nisk refers o the nsk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The
maximum exposure o the credit nsk al the reporiing date is pnmanly from trade recevables amounting to
$1,900 milion and %1,710 million as of March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, respectively and unbilled
revenue amounting to $562 millicn and 3457 million as of March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, respectively.
Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from
customers pamanly located in the United States. Credit nsk has always been managed through credit
approvals, establishing credit imits and continuously monitoning the creditworthiness of customers 1o which
the Growp grants credit terms in the mnormal course of business. The group uses a provision malrix to compute
the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenues. The provision matrix takes
into account available extemnal and internal credit nsk factors such as credit default swap quotes, credit ratings
from intemational credit rating agencies and the Group's histonical expenaence for customers.

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues generaled from top customer and top
five customers:

iIn %)
Year ended March 31,
2017 2018 2015
Revenue from top customer a4 38 33
Revenue from top five customers 126 138 135

Credit risk exposure

The allowance for lifetime expected credit kloss on customer balances for the year ended March 31, 2017 was
£20 millicn. The reversal of allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balances for the year
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ended March 31, 2016 was §7 milion. The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balances
for the year ended March 31, 2015 was $29 million.

(Dofiars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2017 2016 2015
Balance at the beginning 44 58 a6
Translation differences {1 {3) 4)
Impairment loss recognizedi(reversed) 20 M 29
Write offs = 15) (2]
Balance at the end &3 44 58

The Company's credit penod generally ranges from 30-80 days.
{DoNars in millions except as ofherwise stafed)

Period (in days) As of

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Trade receivables 1,800 1,710
Linbilled revenues 562 457
Days Sales Qutstanding- D50 (days) 68 65

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks and financial
mstitubons with high credit ralings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agences. Invesiments
primarily include investment in liguid mutual fund units, fixed maturity plans, quoted bonds issued by
government and guasi government organizations, non-convertible debentures and certificates of depasit

Liquidity risk

The Group's principal sources of kguidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated
from operations. The Group has no outstanding bank borrowangs. The Group believes that the working capital
is sufficient to meet its current reguirements.

As of March 31, 2017, the Group had a working capital of 6,121 milon including cash and cash equivalents
of 3 489 million and current investments of §1,538 million. As of March 31, 2016, the Group had a working
capital of 5 804 million including cash and cash equivalents of $4 935 million and current investments of $11
million.
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As of March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, the outstanding employes benefit obligations were $200 million
and %202 milkon, respectively, which hawe been substantially funded. Accordingly, no bgquidity risk is

pereenied.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of

March 31, 2017:
(Dollars in millions)
Particulars : unthan. 1-2 ym. 2-d years 4-T ylilrl- Total
1 year

Trade payables 57 - - - 57
Client deposits 5 - - - 6
Other Rabiibes (excluding liabilities towards

758 5 - - 763
contingent consideration - Refer to note 2.5)
Liability towards contingent consideration on an
undiscounted basss - (Refer to Note 2.5) T i - - 14

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of

March 31, 2016:
(Dollars 0 millions)
Particulars Less than 1-2 years 2-4years 4-Tyears Total
1 year

Trade payables 58 - - - 58
Client deposits 4 - - s 4
COther Rabiliies (excluding liabiiies towards

732 4 1 - 737
acquisibon - Refer to note 2.5)
Liability towards acquisitions on an undiseounted
basis (including contingent consideration)
{Refer to Note 2 5) 13 T e o 20

2.4 Prepayments and other assets

Prepayments and other assets consist of the following:

{Dollars in millions)

As of

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Current
Rental deposits
Security deposits
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Loans to employees 42 45
Prepaid expenses " 1] an
Interest accrued and not due 89 106
Withholding taxes and others'” 291 272
Advance payments to vendaors for supply of goods " 20 17
Deposit with corporation 218 187
Deferred contract cost ™! 12 7
Other assels G 4
T48 672
Hon-current
Loans o employees 5 4
Security deposits 13 12
Dieposit with conporation 7 a
Prepaid gratuty (Refer note 2.11.1) ™ 12
Prepaid expenses 15 13
Deterred contract cost ! a4 50
Rental deposits a7 22
123 M
&7z 783
Fmancial assels in prepayments and other assets 410 393

"Non-financial assets

Withholding taxes and others primarily consist of input tax credits. Other assets pnmanly represent travel
advances and other recoverable. Security deposits relate principally to leased telephone lines and electricity
supplies. Deferred confract casts are upfront casts incurred for the contract and are amortized over the term
of the contract.

Depasit with corporation represents amounts deposited to settle cerain employee-related obligations as and

when they arise during the normal course of business

2.5 Other liabilities

Other abilites comprise the following:
{(Dollars in millions)

As of

Mareh 31, 20417 March 31, 2016

Current
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Accrued compensation to employees 280 342
Accrued expenses 390 amn
Withholding taxes and others " 189 196
Retainage 34 12
Liabilities of controdled trusts 22 25
Liahility towards contingent consideration (Refer note 2 9) T 12
Others 13 2
954 940
Non-current
Liability towards contingent consideration (Refer note 2.9) B
Accrued compensation to employees 5
Deferred income - government grant on land use rights ‘" [ ¥
Deferred income 7 -
24 17
o78 957
Financial abiliies included in other liabalities 176 754
Contingent consideration on undiscounted basis 14 20
" Mon-financial Kabilities

Accrued expenses primarity relate to cost of techrical sub-contractors, telecommunication charges, legal and
professional charges, brand building expenses, overseas fravel expenses and office maintenance. Cthers
include unpaid dividend balances and capital creditors.

2.6 Provisions
Provisions comprise the following:

{Doblars in milliorns )
As of

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Provision for post sales chent support and other provisions 83 7
&3 7

Provision for past sales client support and other provisions represents costs associated with providing sales
support services which are acerued at the time of recognition of revenues and are expected 1o be utilized over
a penod of & months to 1 year. The movement in the provision for post sales chemt support and other
provisions is as follows:

{Dollars in millons )
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Year ended

March 31,

2017

Balance al the beginning : T
Translation differences -
Provision recognized / (reversed) 15
Provision utilized (29}
Balance at the end 63

Provision for post sales client support and other provisions is inclueded in cost of sales in the consolidated
statermnent of comprehensive ncome.

As of March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2018, claims against the company, not acknowledged as debis, net of
amounts paid (excluding demands from Indian income tax authorbes- Refer 1o Note 2.16) amounted Lo $46
million (8301 crore) and $42 millon (€277 crore), respectively

The company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have ansen in the ordinary course of business,

The company’s management does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when uiimately concluded
and determined, will have a matenal and adverse effect on the company's resulte of operations or financial
condition.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Fallowing are the changes in the carmying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31,

2017

(Dollars im millions)

Land Buildings Plant and Computer FurnitureVehicles Toral
machineryequipment and
fixtures
Gross carrying value as of April 1,
20186 244 95656 392 816 218 4 2.428
Additions 22 147 73 120 T 1 420
Deletions - - (8 (47) {17) (1) (73
Translation difference 6 2 9 12 3 1 52
Gross carrying value as of March
31, 2017 272 1.123 466 To0 P 5 2827
Accumulated depreciation asz of
April 1, 2018 (3) (232) (243) (395) [14%) (@ [(1,126)
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Depreciation (1) (35) (57} {101} (31) (1) {226)
Accumulated depreciation on
deletions - - 5 4 14 1 54
Translation difference - (9) {B) (2) {2) - (286)
Accumulated depreciation as of
March 31, 2017 (4) (378) (301) (411) (168) 2 (1.323)
Capital work-in-progress  as  of
March 31, 2017 303
Carrying value as of March 31, 2017 268 T4T 1685 228 a3 2 1.807
Capital work-in-progress as of April
1. 2018 288
Carrying value as of April 1, 2016 241 623 149 220 B9 1 1.58%9

Following are the changes in the camying value of property, plant and eqguipment for the year ended March 31,

2016

{Dollars in millions)

Land Buildings Plant and Computer FurnitureVehicles Total
machineryequipment and
fixtures
Gross carrying value as of April 1,
20186 250 940 a7 536 189 -] 2,257
Additions 9 68 76 168 40 1 362
Deletons
- - i (60) 1 2} (&4)
Translation difference {15} (53) (207 (28) (10} (1) {127)
Gross carrying value as of March
3, 2018 244 956 392 815 218 4 2428
Accumulated depreciation as of
April 1. 2015 (3} (317) {207) [365) (132} (3) {1.027)
Depreciation (1) (33) (49) (84) (24) (1} {192)
Accumulated depreciation on
deletions - - 1 35 1 1 L]
Translation difference 1 18 12 18 & - 55
Accumulated depreciation as of
March 31, 2016 (3) (332) (243) [395) (148) (3) {1.125)
Capital work-in-progress as n'r. . . .
March 31, 2018 286
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Carrying value as of March 31, 2016 241 623 148 220 &9 1 1,589
Capital work-in-progress as of April

1, 2015 230
Carrying value a= of April 1, 2015 247 623 130 170 57 3 1.460

Following are the changes in the camying value of property, plant and eguipment for the year ended March 31,
2015:

{Dollars n millions)

Land Buildings Plant and Computer FurnitureVehicles Total
machineryequipment and

fixtures
Gross carrying value as of April 1,
2014 180 839 284 444 170 & 1.833
Additions ] 139 60 124 30 1 432
Acquisitions through business
combination
{Refer to note 2.9) - - - 2 1 - 3
Deletions - - {3) (13) (3) (1 (200
Translation difference (9} (38) (13) {22) {9 - (91)
Gross carrying value as of March 31,
2015 250 940 3T 535 188 & 2,257
Accumulated depreciation as of
April 1, 2014 - {300) (175 (328) {117} (2) {922)
Accumulated depreciation on acquired
assets (Refer to note 2.8) - - - (1) i £ {1
Depreciation (3} (31) [42) (63) (24} (1) {164)
Accumulated depreciation on deletions - - 2 1 3 1 17
Translation difference - 14 & 16 & (1 43
Accumulated depreciation as of
March 31, 2015 (3 (317) (207) (365) (132) # (1.027)
Capital work-in-progress  as  of
March 31, 2015 230
Carrying value as of March 31, 2015 247 823 130 170 57 3 1.460
Capital work-in-progress as of April
1, 2014 305
Carrying value as of April 1, 2014 190 538 109 186 53 4 1316
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Dwring the three months ended June 30, 2014, the management based on intermal and extemnal technical
evaluation had changed the useful life of certain assets primanly consisting of buildings and compufers. with
effect from Apnl 1, 2014. Accordingly, the useful hves of certain assels required a change from previous
estimate.

The depreciation expense is included in cost of sales in the statement of comprehensive INcome.

Camying value of land includes $89 millon and $85 million as of March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016,
respectively, towards deposits paid under certain lease-cum-sale agreements fo acquire land, including
agreements whene the company has an oplion to either purchase the properties of refew the lease on expiry

of the lease peniod.

The contractual commitments for capital expenditure were $177 million and $224 million as of March 21, 2017
and March 31, 2018, respectively.

2 B Goodwill and intangible assets

Faollowing is a summary of changes in the camying amount of goodwill:
(Dollars in millions)

As of
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
Carrying valus at the beginning : 568 495
Goodwill on Kallidus d b.a Skava acquisition (Refer 1o note 2.9) - T
Goodwill on Noah acquisition (Refer to note 2.9) - 5
Translaton differences %) (3)
Carrying value at the end 563 568

Faor the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated o the cash
generating units (CGU) or groups of CGlUs, which are benefited from the synergies of the acquisiion. The
Chief Operating Decision Maker reviews the goodwill for any mmpairment at the operating segment level,
which is represented through groups of CGUs,

Durng the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company resfganized some of its segments to enhance executive
customer relationships, improve focus of sales investments and increase management oversight. Consegquent
i these intemmal reorganizations there were changes effected in the segments based on the “management
approach” as defined in IFRS 8, Operating Segments (Refer Mate 2.19). Accordingly, the goodwill has been
allocated to the new operating segments as at March 31, 2016,
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The: following table presents the allocation of goodwill to operating segments:

Segments As of March 3,
2017 2016

Financial senvices 127 128
Mamnufacturing 63 64
Retail, Consumer packaged goods and Logistics 86 a7
Life Sciences, Healthcare and Insurance ag 99
Energy & utilities, Communication and Senvices 118 118
442 447

Operating segments without significant goodwill | 7
Total 563 568

The entire goodwill relating to Infosys BPO's acquisition of McCamish has been allocated fo the groups of
CGL's, which are represented by the Life Sciences, Healthcare and Insurance segment

The goodwill relating to Infosys BPO, Infosys Lodestone, Portland, Panaya and Kalidus dba Skava
acquisitions has been allocated to the groups of CGUs, which are represented by a majority of the entity's
operating segment

The entire goodwill from Moah acquisition has been allocated to the group of CGL's which is represented by
the Energy & Utilites, Communication & Sernces segment

The: recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use. The fair
value of a CGLU is determined based on the market capitalization. The value-in-use is determined based on
specific caloulations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections over a period of five years, based
on financial budgets approved by management and an average of the range of each assumpbion mentioned
below. As of March 31, 2017, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGL) exceeded its cammying amount
The recoverable amount was computed based on the fair value being higher than value-in-use and the
carmying amount of the CGU was compuled by allocating the net assets to operating segments for the purpose
of impairment testing. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as follows:

As at March 31. 27 2016
Long term growth rate B-10 B-10
Operating margins 17-20 17-20
Discount rate 144 14.2
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The above discount rate is based on the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) of the Company. These
estimates are likely to differ from future actual results of operations and cash flows.

Following are the changes im the carrying value of acquired ntangible assets for the year ended March 31,
207

{Dollars in mallions )}
CustomerSoftware Sub-contractingintellectual LandMarketingOthersTotal
related related  rightrelated property use related

rights rights
relatedrelated

Gross carrying value as of

April 1, 2018 117 82 3 - 11 14 10 217
Deletion - - - - - - - =
Translaton differences (1) - - - (1) - - i2)
Grozs carrying value as of : : : : : :
March 31, 2017 118 g2 3 - 10 14 10 218
Accumulated amortization

as of April 1, 2018 (48) 8} (3) = (1) 15) (4) (B88)
Amaontization expense {14} {9y - - - 12)  (3) (28)
Dredetion - - - - - - - -
Translation differences 1 {1} - - - - i Bl |
Accumulated amortization

as of March 31, 2017 5%) (19} (3) - 1) T} (&) (85)
Carrying value as of March

31,2017 57 43 - - ] T 4 120
Carrying value as of April 1,

2016 7 53 - - 10 9 & 149
Estimated Useful Life (in

years) 310 5-8 - - 50 310 35
Estimated Remaining

Useful Life (in years) 1-6 3-8 - - 44 18 14

Dwring the year ended March 31, 2017, the management based on an internal evaluation reassessed the
remaining useful life of certain software technology assels acquired as a part of business combinations.
Accordingly, the remaining useful ife of the said asset which was 8 years has been revised to 3 years.
Amartization expense for the year ended March 31, 2017 is higher by $3 million due to the revision
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Following are the changes in the camying value of acquired mtangible assets for the year ended March 31,

2016

(Dollars in millions}

CustomerSoftwareSub-contractingintellectual LandMarketing OthersTotal
related related right related property use related
rights rights
relatedrelated

Gross carrying value as of
April 1, 2015 72 42 3 Z " 8 5 143
Additons  through  business
combinabions (Refer to nabe
29) 45 | - - - 6 4 7§
Dieletion - - - T - - - 2
Translation differences - (1) - - - - 1 -
Gross carrying value as of
March 31, 2016 117 B2 3 - " 14 10 217
Accumulated amortization
as of April 1, 2015 (28) (3) (3) 2] (1) (8 (1) (41)
Amartization expense (200 (B) - - - (1 () (30
Deedetion - - - 2 - - - 2
Translaton diferences - - - - - 1 - 1
Accumulated amortization
as of March 31, 2016 [46) {2 3 =My (5 (4) (68)
Carrying value as of March
31, 2016 T 53 - - 10 k| 6 148
Carrying value as of April 1,
2015 48 39 - - 10 3 4 102
Estimated Useful Life (in
years) 310 810 - - 50 10 35
Estimated Remaining
Useful Life (in years) 1-7 -9 - = 45 p 2= R

Following are the changes in the carrying value of acquired intangible assets for the year ended March 31,

2014
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CustomerSoftwareSub-contractingintellectual LandMarketingOthersTotal

related related right related property wuse related
rights rights
relatedrelated

Gross carrying value az of

April 1, 2014 G4 ] 3 2 11 ] 1 82
Additons  through business

combinations (Refer to note

2.9 13 39 - - - 3 4 &9
Dredetion - (3} - - - - - {3
Translation differences (5] - - - - - - (5)
Gross carrying value as of

March 31, 2015 72 42 3 2 11 8 5 143
Accumulated amortization

as of April 1, 2014 (21) (4) (3) 2} - (@) (1) (35)
Amortization expense (7] (2} - - {1} (1) - (11}
Dredetion - = - - - - —.-.a
Translation differences 2 = - - - - - ]
Accumulated amortization

as of March 31, 2015 (28) 3) (3) 2] (1) 15) (1) (41)
Carrying value as of March

31,2015 4B 39 - - 10 3 4 102
Carrying value as of April 1,

2014 43 2 - - 11 1 - BT
Estimated Useful Life (in

years) 3-10 10 3 - 5O 2-10 a
Estimated Remaining

Useful Life (in years) 2-8 10 - - 46 10 3

The aggregate amorization expense s included in cost of sales in

comprenensive income.

the consolidated statement of

Research and development expense recognized in net profit in the consolidated statement of comprebensive
income, for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2016 and 2015 were $118 million, 5108 milion and $110 million,

respectively.

2.8 Business combinations
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Infesys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

On October 22, 2012, Infosys acquired 100% of the voling interests in Lodestane Holding AG, a global
management consultancy firm headquartered in Zurich, The business acquisition was conducted by entering
into a share purchase agreement for a cash consideration of $219 million and an additional consideration of
up o $112 milkon, which the company relers to as deferred purchase prnice, estmated on the date of
acquisition, payable to the selling shareholders of Lodestone Holding AG who are continuously employed or
otherwise engaged by the Group duning the three-year penod following the date of the acquistion. This
transaction is treated as post acquisition employee remunerafion expense as per IFRS 3R. During the year
ended March 31, 2016, the liability towards post-acquisiion employes remunerabon expense was selthed.

For fiscal 2016 and 2015, a post-acquisition employee remuneration expense of 523 millkion and $41 million,
respectively, is recorded in cost of sales in the statement of comprehensive income.

Panaya

On March &, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interests in Panaya Inc. a Delaware Corporation in the
United States. Panaya is a leading provider of automation technology for large scale enterprise and software
management. The business acgquisition was conducted by entering into a share purchase agreement for cash
consideration of $225 milkon.

Panaya's Cloud Cluality™ suite positions Infosys to bring automation to several of its service lines via an agile
SaaS model, and helps mitigate risk, reduce costs and shorten time fo market for clients. The excess of the

purchase consideration paid over the fair value of net assets acquired has been atiributed to goodwill.

The purchase price has been allocated based on Management's estimates and independent appraisal of fair
values as follows:

{Dollars i millions)

Component . Aoqulm't- Fair v:lu-.l‘-'urchm price
earryingadjustments allecated
amount
Property, plant and eguipment 2 - 2
Met current assets® L] - (3]
Intangible assels — technology - g a9
Intangible assets — trade name - 3 3
Intangible assets - customer contracts and relationships - 13 13
Intangible assels — non compete agreements i 4 4
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Deferred tax liabilities on intangible assets - (18] (18)

8 4 51
Goodwill 174
Tetal purchase price 225

* Includes cash and cash equivalents acquired of 319 mulbon.

The goodwill is not tax deductible.

The gross amount of trade receivables acquired and its fair value is $9 million and the amounts have been
largely collected.

The: fair value of total cash consideration as at the acquisition date was $225 million.

The fransaction costs of 54 milion related to the acquisiton have been included under administrative
expenses in the statement of comprefhensive income for the year ended March 31, 2015,

Kallidus Ine. (d.b.a Skava)

On June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interests in Kallidus Inc., US, a leading provider of
digital experience solutions, including mobile commerce and in-store shopping experiences to large retail
clients and 100% of the voling interests of Skava Sysitems Private Limited, an affiliate of Kallidus. The
business acquisition was conducted by entening info a share purchase agreement for cash consideration of
%91 million ard a contingent consideration of up to $20 millicn,

Infosys expects to help its clients bring new digital experiences to their customers through IP-led technology
offerings, new automation tools and skill and expertise in these new emernging areas. The excess of the
purchase consideraton paid over the fair value of net assets acquired has been atinbuted to goodwill.

The purchase price has been allocated based on management’s estimates and independent appraisal of far
values as follows:
(Dallars in milians)

Component Acquires's Fair value Purchase price
carrying  adjustments allocated

amount
Met Assets® & - &
Intangible assets — technology - 21 21
Intangible assets — trade name - 2 2
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Intangible assets — customer contracts and relationships - e v
Deferred tax liabidities on intangible assets - {20 {20}

& a0 36
Goodwill T
Tetal purchase price 107

* Includes cash and cash equivalents acquired of 54 million.

The goodwill is not tax deductible.

The gross amount of trade receivables acquired and its fair value is $9 million and the amounts have been
fully collected.

The acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration as of the acquisition date is as follows:
{Dialars in millions)

Component Consideration

settled
Cash Paid "
Fair value of contingent consideration 16
Tetal purchase price 107

The payment of contingent consideration to sellers of Kallidus is dependent upon the achievement of certan
financial targets by Kalkdus over a penod of 3 years ending on December 31, 2017.

The fair value of contingent consideration is determined by discounting the estimated amount payabile to the
sellers of Kallidus on achievement of certain financial targets. At the acquisition date, the key inputs used in
determination of the fair value of contingen! consideration are the discount rate of 14% and the probabilities of
achievement of the financial targets,

Dunng the year ended March 31, 2017 contingent consideration of S8 milion was paid to the sellers of
Kallidus on the achievermnent of certain financial targets. The balance contingent consideration as of March 31,

2017 and March 31, 2016 is $14 million and $20 million on an undiscounted basis,

The transaction costs of 52 milion related to the acguisiton have been included under administrative
expenses in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2016,

Neah Consulting LLC
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On November 16, 2015, Infosys has acquired 100% membership interest in Noah Consulting, LLC, a leading
provider of advanced information management consulting services for the ol and gas industry. The business
acquisibon was conducted by enterng inlo a share purchase agreemenlt for cash consideraton of $33 milkan,
a contingent consideration of up to 35 million and an additicnal consideration of up to $32 million, refered to
as refention bonus payable to the employees of Noah at each anniversary year following the acquisition date
for the next three years, subpect to ther continuous employment with the group at each anniversary.

This acquisiion combines Moah's industry knowledge, information strategy planning, data govemnance and
architecture capabilities with Infosys’ ability to provide technology and outsourcing services on a global scale
1o ol and gas clients. The excess of the purchase considerabon paid over the fair value of niet assels acquired
has been attributed to goodwill.

The purchase pnce has been allocated based on management's estimates and ndependent appraisal of far
values as follows:
(Draftars in milfions)

Component ; Anquirn‘:l Fair valut.l‘-'urchm price
carrying adjusiments allocated
amount
Met Assets” & -
Intangible assels — technical know-how - 4
Intangible assets — trade name - 4
Intangible assets — customer contracts and relationships - 18 18
& 26 a2
Goodwil 7
Total purchase price ar

" Includes cash and cash equivalenis acquired of 53 million

Goodwill of 31 million is tax deductible.

The gross amount of trade receivables acquired and its fair value is $4 million and the amounts have been
fully collected.

The acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration as of the acquisition date is as follows:
(Dalars in mllfans)

Cemponent Consideration
settled
Cash Pad 33
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Fair value of contingent consideration 4
Total purchase price a7

The fair value of contingent consideration s determined by discounting the estimated amount payable to the
sellers of Noah on achievermnent of certain financial targets. At the acquisiion date, the key inpuls used in
determination of the fair value of contingent consideration are the discount rate of 32% and the probabilities of
achievement of the financial targets. During fiscal 2016, based on an assessment of Moah achieving the
targels for the year ended December 31, 2015 and year ended December 31, 2016, the entire contingent
consideration has been reversed in the statement of comprehensive income.

The retention bonus is treated as a post-acquisition employee remuneration expense as per IFRS 3R, Faor the
penod fram the closing of the acquisibon to March 31, 2016, a post-acquisiion employee remunerabion
expense of 38 million has been recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. For fiscal 2017 $14
million has been recorded as post-acquisition remuneration expense in the statement of comprehensive

Income

The transaction costs of 52 million related 1o the acguisition have been included under administrative
expenses in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 20168

EdgeVerve Systems Limited

EdgeVerve was created as a wholly owned subsidiary o focus on developing and selling products and
platforms. On April 15, 2014, the Board of Directors of Infosys authonzed the Company to execute a Business
Transfer Agreement and related documents with EdgeVerve, subject to securing the requisite approval from
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. Subsequentty, at the AGM held on June 14, 2014, the
shareholders authonzed the Board lo enter inlo a Business Transfer Agreement and related documents with
EdgeVere, with effect from July 1, 2014 or such other date as may be decided by the Board of Directors. The
company had undertaken an enterprise valuation by an independent valuer and accordingly the business was
transferred for a consideration of 70 million (@421 crore) with effect from July 1, 2014 which was settled
through the issue of fully paid up equity shares.

The transfer of assets and liabilities is accounted for at carmying values and does not have any impact on the
consolidated financial statements

Finacle and Edge Services

On Apnl 24, 2015, the Board of Direclors of Infosys authonzed the Company to execute a Business Transfer
Agreement and related documents with EdgeVerve, a wholly owned subsidiary, to transfer the business of
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Finacle and Edge Senvices. Post the requisite approval from shareholders through postal balkot on June 4,
2015, a Business Transfer Agreement and other related documents were executed with EdgeVerve to transfer
the business with effect from August 1, 2015. The company had underfaken an enterpnse valuation by an
independent valuer and accordingly the business were transferred for @ consideration of 3,222 crore
{approximately $4%1 million) and 177 crore (approximatety $27 million) for Finacle and Edge Services,
respeciively.

The consideration was seffled through ssue of 850,000,000 equity shares amounting to ¥E850 crore
(approximately $129 million) and 254 800,000 non-convertible redesmable debentures amounting o ¥2 549
crore (approximately $389 million) in EdgeVerve, post the reguisite approval from shareholders on December
11, 2015. During the year ended March 31, 2017, EdgeVerve has repaid 420 crore (approximately $63
million} by redeeming proportonate number of debentures.

The transfer of assets and liabilities was accounted for at camying values and did not have any impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

2.10 Expenses by nature

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,

2017 2016 2015
Employee benefit costs 5612 5,236 4,862
Deferred purchase pnce pertainng to acqusition (Refer to Note
2.9) - 23 41
Depreciation and amortization charges (Refer to Mote 2.7 and
2.8) 254 xa2 175
Travelling costs 333 M5 247
Cost of technical sub-contractors 571 53T 354
Cost of software packages for own use 118 113 139
Third party items bought for service delivery to clients 120 a1 3
Operating lease payments (Refer to Note 2.14) 73 a5 50
Consultancy and professional charges 114 118 i
Communication costs 82 68 B2
Repairs and maintenance 19 160 124
Rates and Taxes 22 17 21
Provision for post-sales client support 12 1 6
Power and fuel 34 33 ]
Commission to non-whole time directors 2 1 2
Branding and marketing expenses 51 44 26
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Impairment loss recognized/(reversed) on financial assets 21 {7 29
Insurance charges ] 9 9
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility 34 33 42
Others 36 ar 58
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses and

administrative expenses 7,688 T.126 6,453

2.11 Employee benefits

2.11.1 Gratuity

The fallewing tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognized in the Group's

financial statements as of March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016

(Dollars n millions)

As of

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Change in benefit obligations

Benefit obligations al the beginning 142 131
Service cost 18 18
Interest expense 10 )
Remeasurements - Actuanal losses | (gains) 10 3
Benefits paid {13) {11}
Translation differences 4 (8]
Benefit abligations st the end 172 142
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 143 134
Interest Income 12 10
Remeasurements — Returns on plan assets excluding amounts included in

interest income 2 1
Contributions ar 17
Benefits paid (13) (11}
Translaton differences 3 (8)
Fair value of plan assets at the end 184 143
Funded status 12 1
Prepaid gratuity benefit 12 1

Met gratuity cost for the year ended March 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 comprises the following components:
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Year ended March 31,
2017 20186 2015
Service cost 18 18 16
Met interest on the net defined benefit liabiity / asset 2) i1 {1}
Het gratuity cost 17 i7 15

Amount for the fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015 recognized in statement of other comprehansive income:
{Dollars in millicns)

Year ended March 31,

2017 20186 2015
Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability /
asset
Actuanal (gains) / losses 10 3 1"
{(Retumn) / loss on plan assets excluding amounts included in ) ) )
the net interest on the net defined benefit liability ! asset
Total B F 10

(Dollars in miliens)
Year ended March 31,

2017 2016 2015

(Gain) / koss from change in demographic assumpbions - - -
(Gain) / loss from change in financial assumptions 8 - 9
& - -

The gratuity cost recognized in net profit in the statement of comprehensive income apportioned between cost
of sales, seling and marketing expenses and adminsstrative expenses on the basis of direct employee cost is

as follows:

(Dallars in millicns)
Year ended March 31,

2017 2016 2015
Cost of sales 15 15 13
Selling and markebng expenses 1 1 1
Administrative expenses 1 1 1
17 7 15

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as of March 31, 2017 and March 31,

2016 are set out below:
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As of
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
Discount rate : E.B'K. 7.8%
Weighted average rate of increase in compensation levels 8.0% B.0%

The weighted-average assumplions used to determine net penodic benefit cost for the year ended March 31,
2017, 2016 and 2015 are set out below:

Year ended March 31,

2047 2018 2015
Discount rate 7.8% T.8% 8.2%
VWeighted average rate of increase in compensation levels B.0% B.0% B.0%
‘Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 6.1 years 6.4 years 6.4 years
Discount rate In India, the market for high quality corporate bonds being not developed, the yield of

governmenti bonds is considered as the discount rate. The tenure has been considered
taking into account the past long-term trend of employees’ average remaning Serice
life which reflects the average estimated term of the post- employment benefit
obligations,
Weighted awverage The average rate of ncrease in compensabon levels is determined by the Company,
rate of increase in considening factors such as, the Company's past compensation revision trends and
compensation levels management’s estimate of future salary increases.
Attrition rate Attriton rate considered is the management's estimale based on the past long-term
trend of employee turmover in the Company.

Gratuity s applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are no other significant
foreign defined benefit gratuity plans.

The company contrbutes all ascertained labilities towards gratuity to the Infosys Employees’ Gratuity Fund
Trust. In case of Infosys BPO and EdgeVerve, contributions are made to the Infosys BPO Employees’ Gratuity
Fund Trust and EdgeVerve Systems Limited Gratuity Fund Trust, respectively. Trustees administer
contfibutions made to the trusts. As of March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, the plan assets have been
primarily invested in insurer managed funds.

Actual return on assets for the year ended March 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 was $14 million, $11 million and
$12 million, respectvely.
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As of March 31, 2017, every percentage point increase [/ decrease in discount rate will affect the company's
gratluity benefit obligation by approximately $9 mallon.

As of March 31, 2017, every percentage point increase | decrease in weighted average rate of increase in
compensation levels will affect the company’s gratuity benefit obligation by approsimately 58 million.

Sensitivity for significant actuarnal assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the
valuation of the defined benefit obligation by one percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumptions

constant.

Assumptions regarding future mortality expenence are set in accordance with the published statistics by the
Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The Group expects to contribute $15 million to the gratuity trusts durning the fiscal 2018,

Maturity profile of defined benefil obligation:

(Dollars in millions)

Within 1 year 24
1 -2 vyear 25
2 - 3year 28
3 - 4 year 29
4 - 5 year 30
5 - 10 years 148

2.11.2 Superannuation

The company contributed $25 million, $36 million and $35 million to the superannuation plan during the year
ended March 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Superannualion contfibutions have been apportoned between cost of sales, seling and markeling expenses
and administrative expenses an the basis of direct employee cost as follows:
(Dollars in millions)
Year ended March 31,

2017 2018 2015
Cost of sales 22 a2 3
Selling and marketing expenses 2 3 3
Administrative expenses 1 1
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5 36 a5

2.11.3 Provident fund

Infasys has an obhgation to fund any shortfall on the yeld of the trust's investments over the administered
interest rales on an annual basis. These administered rates are determined annually predominantly
considenng the social rather than economic factors and in most cases the actual return eamed by the
company has been higher in the past years. The actuary has provided a valuation for provident fund liabilities
of the basis of guidance issued by Actuarial Society ol India and based on the below provded assumpbons
there is no shortfall as at March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, respectively.

The details of fund and plan asset position are given below:

{Dollars in millions)

As of
Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Plan assets at period end, at fair value 688 575
Present value of benefit obligation at penod end 688 575

Asset recognized in balance sheet - -

The plan assets have been primarily invested in government secunties.

Assumptions used in determining the present walue obligation of the interest rate guarantee under the

Deterministic Approach:
As of
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Government of India (GO1) bond yield 6.9% T8%
Remaining term of maturity (in years) G years T years
Expected guaranteed interest rate — First Year B.6% B.8%
Thereafter B6% B.6%

The Group contributed 369 million, $63 milkon and $56 million to the provident fund dunng the year ended
March 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Provident fund contnbutons have been apportioned between cost of sales, seling and marketng expenses
and administrative expenses on the basis of direct employes cost as follows:
{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
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2017 2018 2015

Cuaost of sales : EI. 56. 50
Selling and marketing expenses ] 4] 4
Administrative expenses 3 2 2
&9 B3 56

2.11.4 Employes benefit costs include:
(Dollars n millions)

Year ended March 31,

2017 2016 2015
Salaries and bonus * 5,501 5,120 4 756
Defined contnbution plans av 46 43
Defined benefit plans 74 T0 63
5,612 5236 4,862

*  Includes stock compensafion expense of 317 million, 51 milion and less than $1 million for the year
ended March 31, 2017, 2018 and 2015 respectively

The gratuity and provident plans are applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there
are no other signiicant foreign defined benefit plans.

The employee benefit cost is recognized in the fellowing line items in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income:
{Dollars m millions)
Year ended March 31,

2017 2016 2015
Cost of sales ' 4,987 4627 4,299
Selling and marketing expenses 405 403 8%
Administrative expenses 220 206 174
5.612 5.236 4,862

2.12 Equity

Share capital and share premium

The Company has only one class of shares refemed to as equity shares having a par value of ¥5/-. The
Company has allotted 574 236 166 fully paid-up equity shares of face value 5/ each during the thres
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months ended December 31, 2014 pursuant to @ bonus issue approved by the shareholders through postal
ballot. Further during the three months ended June 30, 2015 the Company has allotted 1,148,472,3232 fully
paid-up shares of face value ®5/- each pursuant to bonus issue approved by the shareholders through postal
ballot. The book closure date fiwed by the Board was Jume 17, 2015, Bonus share of one equity share for
every equity share held, and a stock dividend of one American Depositary Share (ADS) for every ADS held,
respectively, has been allotted. Consequently, the rabio of eguity shares underlying the ADS= held by an
American Depositary Receipt holder remains unchanged. Options granted under the stock option plan have
been adjusted for bonus shares. 11,2858 514 and 11,323 576 shares were held by controlled trust, as of March
31, 2017 and March 31, 2018, respectively

The amount received in excess of the par value has been classified as share premium. Additionally,
share-based compensation recognized in net profit in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is
credited to share premium. Amounts have been utilized for bonus issue from share premium account

Retained earmings

Retained earmings represent the amount of accumulated earmings of the Group.

Other Reserves

The Special Economic Zone Re-investment reserve has been created out of the profit of the eligible SEZ unit
in terms of the provisions of Sec 10AA(1)ii) of Income Tax Act, 1961, The reserve should be utilized by the
Company for acquirng new plant and machinery for the purpose of its business in terms of the provisions of
the Sec 10AA(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Other components of equity

Other components of equity consist of cumency transkation, re-measurement of net defined benefit
liability’asset, fair value changes of equity instruments fair valued through other comprehensive income,
changes on fair valuabon of investments and changes in fair value of denvatives designated as cash flow
hedges.

The company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concemn and
to maintain an optimal capatal structure 50 as o maximize shareholder value. In order to maintam or achieve
an optimal capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or buy back issued shares. As of March 31, 2017, the company had only one
class of equity shares and had no debt. Consequent to the above capital structure, there are no externally

imposed capital requirements.
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Effective from Financial Year 2018, the Company expects to payout up to T0% of the free cash flow of the
corfesponding Financial Year in such manner (including by way of dividend andior share buyback) as may be
decided by the Board from time to time, subject to applicable laws and requisite approvals, if any. Free cash
flow is defined as net cash provided by operating activities less capital expenditure as per the consalidated
statement of cash flows prepared under IFRS. Dvidend payout includes dividend distnbution tax.

Additionally, the Board has identified an amount of up to ¥ 13,000 crore (32 bilion) to be paid out to
shareholders dunng Financial Year 2018, in such manner (including by way of dividend and’ or share
bisyback), 1o be decided by the Board, subject to applicable laws and requisite approvals, if any.

The nghts of equity shareholders are set out below.

2.12.1 Vating

Each holder of equity shares s entitled o one vole per share. The equity shares represented by Amencan
Depositary Shares (ADS) carry similar nghts to vobling and drvidends as the olher equity shares. Each ADS
represents one underlying equity share.

2.12.2 Dividends

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The remittance of dividends ouiside India is
governed by Indian law on foreign exchange and is subject io applicable distribution taxes.

The Board has increased dividend pay-out ratio from up to 40% to up to 50% of post-tax consolidated profits
effective fiscal 2015,

The amaunt of per share dividend recognized as distiibutions to equity shareholders for the year ended March
31, 2017 includes final dividend for fiscal 2016 of ¥14 25/ per equity share ($0.22 per equity share) and an
intenm didend for fiscal 2017 of T11/- per equity share (3017 per equity share).

The amount of per share dividend recognized as distnbutions to equity shareholders for the year ended March
31, 2016 includes final dividend for fiscal 2015 of ¥20.50/- per equity share ($0.47 per equity share) (not
adjusted for June 17, 2015 bonus ssue) and an internim dividend for fiscal 2016 of T10- per equity share
{8015 per equity share).

The amount of per share dividend recognized as distnbutions to equity shareholders for the year ended March
31, 2015 was $1.21 @73.00) (not adjusted for bonus issue).
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The Board of Directors, in their meeting on Apnl 13, 2017, proposed a final dividend of T 14.75/- per equity
share [approximately $0.23 per equity share). The proposal i subject to approval of the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting to be held on Jure 24, 2017 and if approved, would result in a cash cutflow of
approximately $626 million (excluding dividend paid on treasury shares), including corporate dividend tax.

2.12.3 Liquidation

In the ewvent of lquidation of the company, the holders of shares shall be enfitied to receive any of the
refmaining assels of the company, alter distnbubion of all preferental amounts. However, no such preferential
amounts exist currently, other than the amounts held by imevocable controlled trusts. The amount distributed
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. For imevocable controlled trusts,
the corpus would be settled in favor of the beneficianes.

2.12.4 Share options

There are no voting, diviadend or liguidation rights o the holders of optons isued under the company's share
option plans.

2.13 Other income

Cther income consists of the following:
(Dollars i millions)

Year ended Mareh 31,
2017 2018 2015
Interest income an financial assets carmried at amortized mﬂ- 3-52. ‘mcz' 447
Interest mcome on financial assets fair valued through other
comprehensive income 28 - -
Dividend income on invesiments camed at fair value
through prafit or loss 4 10 2%
Gain / {loss) on investments carried at fair value through
profit or loss 18 - 2
Exchange gains [ (losses) an forward and opbons contracts B89 4 85
Exchange gains / (lasses) on transkation of ather assets and
liabilities (54]) 21 (7
Orthers 22 39 T
459 478 560
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2,14 Operating leases
The Group has vanous operating leases mainly for office bulldings, that are renewable on a periodic basis.
Rental expense for operating leases was 573 million, %55 million and $50 million for fiscal 2017, 2016 and

2015, respectively.

The schedule of future mmimum rental payments i respect of non-cancellable operating leases is set out

beelow:
(Dollars in millions)
Az of
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Within one year of the balance shest date : 7 56
Due in a pericd between one year and five years 191 132
Due after five years 114 67

A majorty of the group's operating lease arangements extend up to & maximum of fen years from their
respective dates of inception, and relate to rented overseas premises, Some of these lease agreements

contain a price escalation clause.

2.15 Employees' Stock Option Plans (ESOP)

2016 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (the 2015 Plan): The Secunbes Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
issued the Secunbes and Exchange Board of India (Share based Emplovee Benefits) Regulations, 2014
{"SEBI Regulations") which replaced the SEBI ESOP Guidelines, 1999, The 2011 Plan {as explamned below)
was required to be amended and restated m accordance with the SEBI Regulations. Consequently, to effect
this change and to further introduce stock options/ADR's and other stock incentives, the Company put forth
the 2015 Stock Incentive Compensation Flan (the 2015 Plan) for approval fo the shareholders of the

Company. Pursuant to the approval by the shareholders through postal balkot which ended on March 31, 2016,

the Board of Directors have been authorised to introduce, offer, issue and allot share-based incentives to
eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries under the 2015 Plan. The maxamum number of shares
under the 2015 plan shall not exceed 24 038 883 equity shares {this includes 11,223 576 equity shares which
are currently held by the Trust towards the 2011 Plan as at March 31, 2016). 17,038 B33 equity shares will be
issued as RSUs at par value and 7,000 000 equity shares will be msued as stock oplions al markel price.
These instruments will vest over a penod of 4 years and the Company expects to grant the instruments under
the 2015 Plan over the period of 4 lo T years.

On August 1, 2016, the company granted 17,83 615 RSUs (includes equity shares and equity shares
represented by ADS) at par value, to employees up 1o mid management (excluding grants made to Dr. Vishal
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Sikka). Further, the company granted 73,020 Incentive Units (cash-settled) to eligible employees. These
instruments will vest equally over a peniod of 4 years and are subject o continued senvice

On November 1, 2018, the company granted 9,70, 375 RSUs (includes equity shares and equity shares
represented by ADS) at par value, 12,05 850 employves stock options (ESOPs) (including equity shares and
equity shares represented by ADS) fo be exercised at market price at the time of grant, to cerain employees
at the semior management level. Further the company granted 20,640 incentive units {cash-settled) to certain
employees at the senior management level. These instruments will vest equally over a penod of 4 years and
are subject to continued service

Om February 1, 2017, the company granted 18 550 ncentive units (cash-settled) to certain employees at the
senior management level. These instruments will vest equally over a penod of 4 years and are subject to
conbinued service.

As of March 31, 2017, 11,289 514 shares are held by the trust under the 2015 Plan, out of which 100,000
shares have been earmarked for welfare activities of the employees. As of March 31, 2017, 106 845 incentive

units were outstanding (net of forfertures) and the carmying value of the cash liability is less than $1 million.

Pursuant to the approval from the shareholders through postal ballot on March 31, 2096, Dr. Vishal Sikka is

ehgible to receive under the 2015 Plan, an annual grant of RSUs of fair value $2 000,000 which vest over time,

subject to continued service, and an annual grant of performance based equity and stock options of
$5,000,000, subject to achevement of perfformance targets set by the Board or its committee, which vest over
time. 52 000 000 of fair value in RSUs for fiscal 2017 was granted on August 1, 2016 amounting to 120 700
RSUs in equity shares represented by ADS. The Board based on the recommendations of the Mominations
Commitiee approved on Apnl 13, 2017, performance based equity and stock options for the financial year
2017 comprising of 132 483 RSUs amounting to $1.9 millicn and 330,525 ESOPs amounting to $0.96 million.
Further, the Board also approved the annual tme based wvesting grant of 137 741 RSUs for fiscal 2018
amounting to $2 milkon. Though the performance based RSU and stock options for fiscal 2017 were granted
on May 2, 2017, the cost for the same as well as the cost for the time based RSUs for the remaining
employment lerm has been recorded under employee stock based compensation expense for the year ended
March 31, 2017, in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment. The company has recorded employee
stock based compensation expense of $4 millon and $1 million during the year ended March 31, 2017 and
March 31, 2016 respectively, towards CEOQ compensation.

The Momination and Remuneration Committee in #s meeting held on Oclober 14, 2016 recommended a grant
of 27,250 RSUs and 43,000 ESOPs to LB Fravin Rao, Chief Operating Officer (CO0), under the 2015 Plan
and the same was approved by the shareholders through postal ballot on March 31, 2017, These RSUs and
ESCPs will be granted with effect from May 2, 2017. These RSUs and stock options would vest over a penod
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of 4 years and shall be exercisable within the pericd as approved by the Commitiee. The exercise price of the
RSUs will be equal to the par value of the shares and the exercise price of the stock options would be the
markel pnce as on the date of grant, as approved by the shareholders. Though these RSUs and ESOPs were
granted on May 2, 2017, in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, the company has recorded
employee stock based compensation expense for the same, during the year ended March 31, 2017,

2011 RSU Plan (the 2011 Plan) now called 2015 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan ( the 2015 Plan):
The Company had a 2011 RSU Flan which provided for the grant of restricted stock units (RSUs) fo ehgible
employees of the Company. The Board of Directors recommended the establishment of the 2011 Plan to the
shareholders on August 30, 2011 and the shareholders approved the recommendation of the Board of
Directors on Cctober 17, 2011 through a postal ballot. The maximum aggregate number of shares that may
be awarded under the plan was 1,13 34 400 as on date of approval of plan adjusted for bonus shares and the
plan was expected to contnue in effect for a term of 10 years from the date of initial grant under the plan.
Awards have been granted to Dr Vishal Sikka under the 2011 RSU plan as detailed below. Further the
Company has earmarked 1,00 000 equity shares for welfare activities of the employees, approved by the
shareholders vide postal ballol which ended on March 31, 2016. The equity shares as of March 31, 2016 held
under thes plan, Le. 1,12,23 676 equity shares (this includes the aggregate number of equity shares thal may
be awarded under the 2011 Plan as reduced by 10 824 equity shares already exercised by Dr. Vishal Sikka
and 1,00,000 equity shares which have been earmarked for welfare activities of the employees) have been
subsumed under the 2015 Plan.

Dwuring the year ended March 31, 2015, the company made a grant of 108,268 restricted stock units (adjusted
for bonus issues) to Dr. Vishal Sikka, Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director. The Board in its meeting
held on June 22, 2015, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, further granted
1,24 061 RSUs to Or. Vishal Sikka. These RSLs are vesting over a penod of four years from the date of the
grant in the proportions specified in the award agreement. The RSUs will vest subject to achievement of
certain key performance indicators as sel forth in the award agreement for each applicable year of the vesting
tranche and continued employment through each vesting date.

The award granted to Dr. Vishal Sikka on June 22, 2015 was modified by the Nomination and Remunerabion
Committee on Apnl 14, 2016. There is no modification or change in the total number of RSUs granted or the
vesting period (which is four years). The modifications relate to the critenia of vesting for each of the years
Based on the modification, the first tranche of the RSUs will vest subject fo achievement of certain key
performance mdicators for the year ended March 31, 2016, Subsequent vesting of RSUs for each of the
remaining years would be subject to continued employment.

The activity in the 2015 Plan (formerly 2011 RSU Plan) for equity-setiled share based payment fransacton
dunng the year ended March 31, 2017 s 2et out below:
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© Year sncled March 31, 2017
Shares arising Welghted

out of options average
exercise
price(®)
2015 Plan (Formerly 2011 Plan): Indian equity shares (RSU - IES)
Outstanding at the beginning” 221,505 5
Granted 1,878 025 B
Forfeited and expired 61,540 5
Exercised 34 062 &
Qutstanding at the end 2,003,928 1
Exercisable at the end - -
2015 Plan (Formerly 2011 Plan): Indian equity shares (ESOP - IES)
Cutstanding at the beginning = s
Granted 309, 850 a58
Forfeited and expired - -
Exercised - -
Outstanding at the end 309,650 998

Exercizable at the end - -

Year ended March 31, 2017
Shares arising Weighted

out of options average
exercise
price($)
2015 Plan [Formerly 2011 Plan): American Depository Shares (RSU .
ADS)
Crutstanding at the beginning - -
Granted 996,665 .07
Faorfeited and expired 38,220 o.or
Exercised - -
Cutstanding at the end 957,445 0.07
Exercizable at the end - -
2015 Plan (Formerly 2011 Plan): Employee Stock Options (ESOPs- ADS)
Outstanding at the beginning - -
Granted 896 200 15.26
Faorfeited and expared 8,200 1526
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Exercised - -
Cutstanding at the end 888,000 15.26
Exercisable at the end - -

The activity in the 2015 Flan {formerly 2011 RSL Plan) for equity-setfled share based payment fransaction
during the year ended March 31, 2016 is set out below:

Year ended March 31, 20186

Shares arising Weighted
out of aptions AVErage
exercize
price(¥)
2015 Plan (Formerly 2011 Plan): Indian equity shares (IES)
Outstanding at the beginning” 108,268
Granted 124 061
Forfeited and expired - -
Exercised” 10,824 5
Qutstanding at the end 221,508 5
Exercisable at the end - -

The activity in the 2011 Plan during the year ended March 31, 2015 is set out below:

Year ended March 31, 2015
Shares arising Weighted

out of options average
exercise
price(T)

2015 Plan (Formerly 2011 Plan): Indian equity shares (IES)
Outstanding at the beganning - -
Granted" 108,268 5
Forfeited and expired - -
Exercised - -
Cutstanding at the end 108,268 5
Exercisable at the end i -

* Adjusted for bonus issue. (Refer fo note 2.12).
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Dwring the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 the weighted average share price of opbons

exercised under the 2015 Plan on the date of exercise was $16.10 and $16, respectively

The following table summanzes information about equity settled RSUs and ESOPs outstanding as of March

31,2017
Options outstanding

Range of exercise prices per share (§) No. of shares Weighted Weighted
arising out of average average
options remalning exercise price
contractual life (%)

2015 Plan: ADS and |ES ; .
0.07 {RSU} 2,961,373 188 0.07
14 - 16 (ESOP) 1,197 650 7.09 15.83
4.169.023 3.38 4.61

The weighted average remaining contractual life of RSUs oulstanding as of March 31, 2016 under the 2015
Plan was 1.98 years.

The fair value of each RSU is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton model with the
following assumplions:

Particulars Fer options granted in

Fiscal 2017- Fiscal Fiseal Fiscal
Equity 2017- 2047- 2017-
Shares-RSU Equity ADS-R5U ADS-

shares ESOP
ESOP

Grant date 1-Mow-18 1-Mov -16 1-Nov-16 1-Nov-16
Weighted average share pnce (X) /(5 ADS)" 989 989 1526 1626
Exercise price (R) (3- ADS)" 5.00 go8 0.07 15.26
Expected volatility (%) 24-29 27-28 26-29 7
Expected life of the option (years) 1-4 i-7 1-4 3-7
Expected dividends (%) 237 237 229 229
Risk-free interest rate (%) B-7 6-7 1-2 1-2
Wemghted average tair value as on grant date (¥) 7 (3- ADS)" 929 285 14.35 348
Particulars For options granted in
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Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal 2016~ Fizscal 2015-
2017- 2017- Equity Equity
Equity ADS Shares Shares

Shares
Grant date 1-Aug-16 1-Aug-16 22-Jun-15 21-Aug-14
Weighted average share price (T) / (8- ADS)* 1,085 16.57 1,024 3549
Exercise price (E)/ ($- ADS)" 5,00 o.o7 5.00 5.00
Expected valatility (%) 26-29 26-30 28-36 30-37
Expected life of the option (years) 1-4 1-4 1-4 1-4
Expected dividends (%) 237 220 243 1.84
Risk-free interest rate (%) 67  05-1 7-8 B-9
Weghted average fairr value as on grant date (T) 7 (3- ADS)" 1,019 15.59 948 3,355

* Data for Fiscal 2015 iz not adjusted for bonus issues

The expecled term of the RSU [ ESOFP is estimated based on the vesting term and contraciual term of the
RSU / ESOP, as well as expected exercise behaviour of the employee who receives the RSU 7 ESOP.
Expected volatility during the expected term of the RSWU / ESOF is based on historical volatility of the
observed market prices of the company's publicly traded equity shares during a period equivalent fo the
expected term of the RSU FESOP.

Dwring the year ended March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, the company recorded an
employes stock compensation expense of $17 million, $1 million and less than $1 million, respectively in the
statement of comprehensive income. The cash seitled stock compensation expense for the year ended March
31, 2017 was less than $1 million.

2.16 Income taxes

Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income comprises:

{Dallars i millions)

Year ended March 31,

2017 2018 2015
Current taxes
Domestic taxes 616 G42 511
Foreign taxes 226 167 282
842 803 793
Deferred taxes
Domestic taxes {1 3 6
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Foreign taxes T (13) 6
(8} {10) 12
Income tax expense 834 789 805

Income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 includes reversals (net of provisions)
of $23 million, $47 milion and $26 millon, respectively, pertaining to earler periods.

The revision in the useful life of assets held at Apal 1, 2014 has resulted in a decrease in deferred tax credit
by 529 million for the year ended March 31, 2015. (Refer to Mote 2.7)

Entire deferred income tax for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015 relates to ongination and reversal of temporary
differences.

During feecal 2017, 2016 and 2015, a current tax credit of $1 millicn, Mil and 32 million has been recorded in

other comprehensive income pertaining to remeasurement of defined benefit plan asset

Dunng fiscal 2017, on account of adoption of IFRS 9, there was a reversal of defemed tax hability of $1 million
pertaining to unrealized gains on quoted debt secunties. Refer note 2.2,

Dwnng fiscal 2017, a net deferred tax kabilty of $2 million has been recorded in other comprehensive incomse
pertaining to unrealized gains on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges.

The company, bemng a resident in India as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, is required to pay
taxes in India on the global ncome in accordance with the provisions of Section & of the Indian Income Tax
Act, 1961, which is reflected as domestic taxes. The geographical segment disclosures on revenue in note
2.19.2 are based on the location of customers and do not reflect the geographies where the actual delivery or
revenue-related efforts occur. The income on which domestic taxes are imposed are nol restricted to the
income generated from the “India” geographic segment. As such, amounts apphcable to domestic income
taxes and foreign income taxes will not necessarly correlate to the proportion of revenue generated from India
and other geographical segments as per the geographic segment disclosure set forth in note 2.19.2.

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate
o the ncome before income laxes 15 summarized below:

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2047 2016 2045
Profit before income taxes 2,874 2,851 2818
Enacted tax rates in India 3461% 3461% 33.99%
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Computed expected tax expense 1,029 D87 958
Tax effect due to non-taxable income for Indian tax purposes {255} (268) {273)
Qverseas laxes 12 109 134
Tax reversals, overseas and domestic (net) (23) (47) (26)
Effect of exempt non-operating income {10} (13) (18)
Effect of unrecognized deferred tax assets 14 9 7
[Effect of differential overseas tax rates 10 1 6]
Effect of non-deduclible expenses 4 a0 34
Taxes on dividend recened from subsidiary - - 1
Additional deduction on research and development expense {8y {9) (9)
Others 1 = -
Ineome tax expense 834 799 205

The applicable Indian corporate statutory tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 is
3461%, 3461% and 33 99%, respectively. The increase in the corporate statutory tax rate to 34.61% is
consequent to changes made in the Finance Act, 2015.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Group has claimed weighted tax deduction on eligible research
and development expenditure based on the approval recerved from Depariment of Scientific and Industrial
Ressarch (DSIR) which is vabkd up to March 31, 2017. An application has been filed for renewal of the R&D
recognition with DSIR.

The weighted tax deduction is equal to 200% of such expenditure incurred.

During year ended March 31, 2016 Infosys had claimed weighted tax deduction on eligible research and
development tll July 31, 2015 based on the approval recerved from Department of Scientsfic and Industnal
Research {DSIR) on November 23, 2011 which was renewed effective April 2014. With effect from August 1,
2015 the business of Finacke, including the R&D activiies, was transferred to its wholly owned subsidiary
Edgeverve Systems Limited. The approval for Edgeverve was effective April 2016

The foresgn lax expense is due 1o income taxes payable overseas, pncipally in the United States. In India,
the company has benefited from certain tax incentives that the Government of India had provided for export of
software from the units registered under the Software Technology Parks Scheme (STP) and the compamy
continues to benefit from certain tax incentives for the units registered under the Special Economic Zones Act,
2005 (SEZ). However, the income tax incentives provided by the Government of India for STP units have
expired, and income from all our STP units are now taxable, SEZ units which began the provision of services
on or after April 1, 2005 are ebgible for a deduction of 100 percent of profits or gains derived from the expaort

of services for the first five years from the financial year in which the unit commenced the provision of services
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and 50 percent of such profits or gains for a further five years. Up to 50% of such profits or gains is also
available for a further five years subject to creation of a Special Economic Zone Re-mvestment Reserve out of
the profit of the eligible SEZ units and utilization of such reserve by the Company for acquining new plant and
machinery for the purpose of its business as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 19681, {Refer to Other
Reserves under note 2,12 Equity).

As a result of these tax imcentives, a portion of the company's pre-tax income has not been subject to tax in
recent years, These tax incentives resulted in a decrease in our income tax expense of $295 million, $268
million and $273 million for the year ended March 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, compared to the tax
amounts that we estimate we would have been required lo pay if these ncentives had nol been available. The
per share effect of these tax incentives computed based on both basic and diluted weighted average number
of equity shares for the year ended March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 2015 was $0.13, $0.12 and
3012, respectively. The basic and diluted weighted average number of equity shares have been adjusted for
bonus issue, wherever applicable. (Refer to Mote 2.12)

The company is subject to a 15% Branch Profit Tax (BFT) in the United States to the extent its LS. branch's

net profit during the year is greater than the increase in the net assets of the LS. branch during the fiscal year,

complted in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code. Az of March 31, 2017, Infosys’ US. branch met
assets amounted to approximately $%24 million. As of March 31, 2017, the Company has provided for branch
profit tax of 350 milion for its U_S branch, as the company estimates that these branch profits are expected
to be distnbuted in the foreseeable future. The change in provision for branch profit tax includes $1 million

maowement on account of exchange rate during fiscal 2017,

Deferred income tax Babilities have not been recognized on temporary differences amounting o $815 mallion
and $745 million as of March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, respectively, associated with investments in
subsidianes and branches as it is probable that the temperary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as of March 31, 2017
and March 31, 2016:

As of
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Income tax assets : 881 789
Current ncome tax liabilities (599) (515)
Net current income tax assets / {liabilities) at the end 282 274

The gross movement in the cument income tax asset / (kability) for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:
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Year ended March 31,

{Dollars n millions)

2017 2018 2015
Met current income tax asset / {liability) at the beginning 274 203 (111}
Translation differences B {12} 3
Income tax paid B43 a9z 1,102
Current income tax expense (Refer o Note 2.16) {842) (8049) {793)
Income tax on other comprehensive income 1 - 2
Het current income tax asset | (liability) at the end 282 274 203

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

are as follows:
{Dollars in millions)
As of

Mareh 21, 2017 March 31, 2018
Deferred income tax assets
Property, plant and equipment 21 27
Computer software B ]
Trade receivables M 13
Compensated absences 58 b8
Accrued compensation to employees a 10
Post sales clients support 15 12
Others 25 a
Total deferred income tax assets 155 137
Deferred income tax liabilities
Temporary difference related to branch profits (500 (51)
Intangible assets (32) (38)
Investments - {1
Others (22) (5)
Total deferred Income tax llabilities (104) (95)
Deferred income tax assets afler set off a3 a1
Deferred income tax liabilties after set off (32) (39)

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax Rabilities have been offset wherever the group has a
legally enforceable right to set off curment income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and where
the deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities relate o income taxes levied by the same

taxation autharity.
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The deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax kabilibes recoverable within and after 12 months are

as follows:

(Dollars in millions)

As of

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018

Deferred mcome tax assels to be recovered after 12 months 75 61
Deferred ncome tax assels to be recovered within 12 months BO TG
Total deferred income tax assets 165 137
Deferred income tax abiktes to be settled afler 12 months (48] (68)
Deferred income tax [abilites o be settled within 12 months (56) (27)
Tetal deferred Income tax llabliities (104) {95)

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or
all of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ulimate realizabion of deferred income tax
assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the pericds in which the temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax
liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on
the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the
deferred income tax assets are deductible, management beheves thatl the group will realize the benefits of
those deductible differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered realizable, however,
could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the camy forward period are
reduced

The gross movement in the deferred income tax account for fiscal 2017, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,

2017 2018 2015
Met deferred mcome tax assel at the beginning 42 60 99
Impact on adoption of IFRS 9 (refer to Note 2.2) 1 - -
Additions through business combination (Refer to note 2.9) - (207 (16)
Translation differences 2 i (=)
Credits/(Charge ) relating to tlemporary differences (Refer 1o
note 2 16) g 10 (12)
Temporary difference on other comprehensive income {2) 1) {2)
Het deferred income tax asset at the end L3 42 &0
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The charge relating to temporary differences during the year ended March 31, 2017 are  primarily on account
of property plant and eguipment and compensated absences partially offset by trade receivables and post
sales client support. The credits relaling Lo lemporary differences during fiscal 2016 are pimanly on account
of accrued compensation 1o employvees and compensated absences partially offset by reversal of credits
pertaining to property plant and eguipment and frade receivables, The charge relating fo temporary
differences dunng fiscal 2015 are primarily on account of property, plant and equipmen!, post sales chent
support, investrments, minimum alternate tax partially offset by compensated absences and trade receivables.

Pursuant to the enacted changes in the Indian Income Tax Laws effective Apnl 1, 2007, the provisions of
Minimwim Alternate Tax (MAT) had been extended to income of STP units. Further, the Finance Act, 2011,
which became effective April 1, 2011, extended MAT to SEZ units and SEZ developer units. Infosys Limited
and Infosys BPO had calculated its tax liability for current domestic taxes after considering MAT. The excess
tax paid under MAT prowvisions being over and above normal tax hability has been fully set off against normal
tax liabilibes of the subsequent years. Consequently, the deferred income tax asset pertaining to MAT credit is
Wil as of March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016,

As ol March 31, 2017, claams against the group nol acknowledged as debls from the Indian Income tax
authorities net of amount paid to statutory authorities of $722 milion (T4,6282 crore) amounted 1o $262million
%1696 crore),

As of March 31, 2016, claims against the group not acknowledged as debls from the Indian Income tax
authorities net of amount paid to statutory authorities of $662 million (4,383 crore) amounted to $1 million (€

T crore).

Demand for fiscal 2007, fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2009 incledes disallowance of a portion of the deduction
claimed by the company under Section 10A of the income Tax Act as determined by the ratio of expori
lurmover to tolal umover. The disallowance arose from cerfain expenses incurmed in foreign currency being
reduced from export tumover but not reduced from total turncver. Demand for fiscal 2007, fiscal 2008, fiscal
2009, fiscal 2010, fiscal 2011, also includes disallowance of porton of profit eamed outside India from the
STP units under section 10A of the Income Tax Act and disallowance of profits eamed from SEZ units under
section 1044 of the Income Tax Act. Demand for fiscal 2012 & fiscal 2013 includes disallowance of cerain
expenses incumed in foreign currency being reduced from export tumover but not reduced from total turnover
and disallowance of profits eamed from SEZ units which commenced operations before April 1, 2008 under
sechon 1044 of the Income Tax Act and also others. The matters for fiscal 2007, fiscal 2008, fiscal 2009 and
fizcal 2013 are pending before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) Bangalore. The matter for fiscal
2010, fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2012 is pending before Hor'ble Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) Bangalore
The company is contestng the demand and the management including s tax advisors believes that its
position will ikely be upheld in the appellate process. The management believes that the ulimate outcome of
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these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of

operations.

2.17 Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing sarmings per equity share

The fallowang is a reconciliabon of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluled earmings per
equity share:

Year ended March 31,

2017 2018 2015
Basic earnings per equity share - weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding 2,285 B39 447 2285 616,160 2 285 610,264
Effect of dilutive commaon equivalent shares - share oplions
outsianding 757,208 102,734 32 BT6
Dilwted eamings per equity share - weighted average
number of equity shares and common equivalent shares
outstanding 2,286,396,745 2285 718,894 2285642 840

" e xefudes treasury shares
= adjusted for bonus shares, wherever applicable Refer to note 2.12

Far the year ended March 31, 2017, 112,180 number of options to purchase equity shares had an anti-dilutive
effect.

Faor the year ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, there were no outstanding options to purchase equity shares
which had an anti-dilutive effect.

2.18 Related party transactions

List of subsidiaries:

Particulars Country Halding as of

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Infosys BPO Limited {Infosys BPO) India 99.98% 99.98%
Infasys Technologes (China) Co Lid (Infosys China) China 100% 100%
Infosys Technologies 5. de R. L. de C_ V. {Infosys Mexico)  Mexico 100% 100%
Infosys Technodogies (Sweden) AB. (Infosys Sweden) Sweden 100% 100%
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys China 100% 100%
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Infosys Tecnologia DO Brasil LTDA. (Infosys Brasil) Birazil 100% 100%
Infosys Public Services, Inc. USA (Infoesys Public Services) US 100% 100%
Infosys Amencas Inc,, (Infosys Amencas) Uz 100% 100%
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited sro(formery Infosys Czech

BPOs. ro)" Republic 99.98% 99.98%
Infosys Paland Sp £ oo (formerly Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp

Zoof" Foland 09 08% 09 08%
Infosys BFO SIDE RL DECV "™ Mexico = 5
Infosys McCamish Systems LLG ™" Us 09 8% 09 0a%
Portland Group Pty Led'" Australia 09 98% a9.98%
Infosys BPO Americas LLC "™ s 0% 08% -
Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty Limited (Infosys

Austrasia) Australia 100% 100%
Edgeverse Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) Inia 100% 100%
Infosys Consulling Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (Jorrmerhy

Lodestone Holding AG) Switzerland 100% 100%
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. ™' s 100% 100%
Infosys Management Consultants Pty Limited (formerly

Lodestone Management Cansultants Pty Limited) ®' Australia 100% 100%
Infosys Consulling AG (formerly Lodestone Management

Consultants AG) ™ Swilzerkand 100% 100%
Lodestone Augmentis AG #1141 Switzerand o 100%
Lodestone GmbH (formery Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH)

i Switzerland - 100%
Infosys Consulting  (Belgium) NV [formerly  Lodestons

Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A ) ™ Belginm 89 .90% 099.90%
Infosys  Consulling GmbH (formery  Lodestone

Management Consultants GmbH)™ Germany 100% 100%
Infosys Consulting Pte  Ltd.  (formerdy  Lodestone

Managernent Consultants Pte Lid)"™ Singapone 100% 100%
Infosys Consulling SAS (lormerly Lodestone Management

Consultants SAS) ™ France 100% 100%
Infosys Consulting sro (formery Lodestone Management Czech

Consultants s ro.) ™ Republic 1004 100%
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH ™ Austna 100% 100%
Lodestone Management Consultants Co_, Lid. ™ China 100% 100%
Ity Consuling Company L. (formedy  Lodestons UK 100% 100%
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Management Consultants Lid } ™
Infy Consulting BV (formery Lodestone Managemeni

Consultants B V) ™ Netherlands 100%
Infosys Consulting Ltda (formerly Lodestone Management

Consultants Ltda )" Braczil 99 Q9%
Infosys Consulting Sp. Zo0.  (formerdy Lodestones

Management Consultants Sp. z.o.o. ™ Poland 100%
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal,

Lda. @ Portugal 100%
5.C. Infosys Consulting SRL.(formery S.C. Lodestone

Management Consultants 5. R L) ™ Romania 100%
Infosys Consulting S R.L. {formerty Lodestone Management

Consultants S.R.L.) ™ Argentina 100%
Infosys Canada Public Services Lid. ™ Canada it
Infosys Nova Holdings LLC (Infosys Nova) us. 100%
Panaya Inc (Panaya) LS, 100%
Panaya Ltd ™ Israel 100%
Panaya Gmbh ™ Germany 100%
Panaya Pty Lid 7" Australia -
Panaya Japan Ca. Lid ™ Japan 100%
Skava Systems Pvt Lid (Skava Systems)™ India 100%
Kallidus Inc.(Kallidus)™ us 100%
Moah Consulting LLC (Noah)™ us 100%
Moah  Information Management Consulting Inc  (Moah

Canada)l'" Canada 100%

100%

%0.95%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

' Wholly owned subsidiary of Infosys BPO.
2 Under hquidation

A Wholly owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formery Lodestone Holding AG)

“ Majority owned and controlled subsidiaries of infosys Consulting Halding AG (formeriy Lodestone Holding

AG)

A Wholly owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formery Lodestone Management Consullants AG)

& Wholly owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc.

7 Wholly owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.

' On June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the volting interest in Skava Systems

& On June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Kalidus fnc.

“%0n Movember 16, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the membership interests in Noah
T Wholly owned subsidiary of Noah
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" neorporated effective November 20, 2015
"3 iquidated effective March 15, 2016

" iquidated effective October 5, 2016

" iquidated effective November 16, 2016
"8 iquidated effective December 21, 2016
"Twholly cwned subsidiary of Infasys

Dwring the year ended March 31, 2015, Infosys Poland Sp.Z 0.0 paid a dividend of $4 million, respectively, to
its holding company, Infosys BPO and the tax on such dividend received was 51 million

Dwring the year ended March 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, Infosys Consulting AG (formerly

Lodestone Management Consultants AG) paid a dividend of 34 million, $2 million and $1 million, respectively,

to its holding company, Lodestone Holding AG and the tax on such dividend received was Nil

During the year ended March 31, 2017, Infy Consulting Company Lid. {formerly Lodestone Management
Consultants Ltd.) pard a dradend of $5 million to its holding company, Lodestone Holding AG and the tax on
such dividend received was Nil.

Infosys has prowded guarantee for performance of cerlain contracts entered into by ils subsidianes.

List of associates:

Particulars Country Holding as of
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
DWA Mova LLC (DWA Nova) ™ us 16% 16%

M Associate of Infosys Nova. During the year ended March 31, 2015, Infosys Mova acquired 20% of the
equily interests in DWA Nova LLC for a cash consideration of $15 mihon. The Company has made this
investment o form @ new company alang with Dream Works Animation (DWA). The new company, DWA
Nova LLC, will develop and commercialize image generation fechnology in order fo provide end-to-end
digital manwfactunng capabiifes for companies involved i the design, manufactunng, markebng or
disinbution of physical consumer products. As of March 31, 2017, Infosys Nova holds 16% of the equity
inferest in DWA Nova LLC.

Share of associate loss & others for the year ended March 31, 2017 includes an impairment loss of $3
million on investment in DWA Nova LLC

Transaction to acquire associate's stake:
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(Dollars in millions)

Particulars Year ended
March 21, 2015

Financing transactions
Investment in DWA Nova 15
15

List of ather related parties:

Particulars Country MNature of relationship

Infosys Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust India
Infosys Limited Employees’ Provident Fund Trust india
Infosys Limited Employees' Superannuation Fund

Trust Irvcliza
Infosys BPC Limited Employees' Superannuation Fund
Trust India
Infosys BFC Limited Employees’ Gratusty Fund

Trust India
EdgeVerve Systems Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund
Trust India

EdgeVerve Systems Limited Employees'

Superannuation Fund Trust India
Infosys Employees’ Welfare Trust india
Infosys Employee Benefits Trust India
Infosys Science Foundation india

Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys
Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys

Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys

Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys
BFPO

FPost-employment benefit plan of Infosys
BPO

Post-employment  benefit plan of
EdgeVerve

Post-employment benefit plan of
EdgeVerve

Controlled Trust

Controlled Trust

Contralled Trust

Refer to Note 2.11 for information om transactions relating to the post-employment benefit plans mentioned

above,

Transactions with key management personnsl

Dwring the year ended March 31, 2017, the company has additionally identified its Presidents - Mohit Joshi,
Sandeep Dadlani, Rajesh K Murthy, Ravi Kumar S, and Group Head - Human Resources - Knshnamurthy
Shankar as key managenal personnel as defined under 1AS 24 — Related Party Disclosures with effect from
October 13, 2016, The Company's Deputy General Counsel, Gopi Krishnan Radhakrishnan has assumed the
responsibilities as acting General Counsel with effect from January 1, 2017 and was identified as a KMP from

theat date.
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The table below describes the compensation 0 key management personnel which comprises directors and
executive officers under IAS 24:
{Dellars m millions)

Year ended March 31,

2017 2016 2015
Salaries and other employee benefils to whole-time : '

directors and executive officers’™ & (5 12 15 5
Commission and other benefis o non-executive

independent directors 2 2 2
Total 14 17 7

P Includes employee sfock compensation expense of 35 million, 1 milion and less than 51 million for the
year ended March 31, 2007, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, respectively towards key managenal
personne|

' Year ended March 31, 2017 includes $0.87 million payable under severance agreement to David Kennedy,
who stepped down as General counsel and Chief compliance officer with effect from December 31, 2016

T Year ended March 31, 2018 includes $2 58 milion payable under severance agreement to Rajiv Bansal
who stepped down as Chief Financial afficer with effect from Oclober 12, 2015

M Pursuant to the approval from the shareholders through postal haltol concluded on March 31, 2016 Dr.
Vishal Sikka is eligible to receive vanable pay of $3 million at target, an annual grant of ime based RSUs
of fair valuve 32 milion wiich vest over time, subject fo continuved sendce and an anmual grant of
performance based equity and stock opfions of 85 milhon, which vest over ime subject fo achievement of
performance targels sel by the Board or ils committee under the 2015 Plan.

Based on the performance evalualion for fiscal 2017, the Board an the recommendations of the
Nommablons Commilffee approved an April 13, 2017,

= 3082 milhon as varable pay fo CEQ for the year ended March 371, 2017.
- performance based equity and sfock ophons for fiscal 2017 compnsing of 132 483 RSUs
amounting lo £1.9 milion and 330 525 ES0P: amounting lo $0.96 million.

= the annual ime based RSUs amounting fo $2 million for fiscal 2018 comprising of 137,741 RSUs.

These RSUs and sfock oplions have been granted with effect from May 2, 2017,

Further, the year ended March 21, 2016 includes provision for vanable pay amounting to $4.33 milion io
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CEQ. The shareholders in the EGM dated July 20, 2014 had approved a vanable pay of $4.18 mihon al a
target leve! and also authorized the Board fo affer and vary the terms of remuneration. Accordingly, the
Board based an the recommendations of the Nominations Committee approved on Aprit 15, 2016, 54.33
millfon as variable pay for the year ended March 31, 2016
= On Mareh 31, 2017, the shareholders vide postal balol approved a revision in the salary of U.B. Pravin
Rao, whole-time director and COO with effect from November 1, 2018, Further, based on fiscal 2015
performance, the Maomination and Remuneration Commiffee in itz meefing held on October 14, 2016
recommended a grant of 27,250 R5Us and 43,000 ESOPs fo U B Pravin Rao, COO, under the 2015 Plan
and the same was approved by the shareholders through postal baliof an March 31, 2017, These RSUs
and ESOPs are granted on May 2, 2017.

® Includes payment of variable pay amounting lo $2.1 million for the year ended March 31, 2015 fo CEO as
decided by the Nomination and Remunerabion Committee on June 22, 2015 i hne with the compensation
plan approved by the shareholders,

2.19 Segment reporting

IFRS 8 establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating
segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. The
Group's operations predominantly relate to providing end-to-end business solutions to enable chents to
enhance business performance. During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Group reorganized some of its
segments to enhance executive customer relationships, improve focus of sales investments and increase
management oversight. Conseguent to the internal reorganization, Growth Markets (GMU) compnsing
enterprises in APAC {Asia Pacific) and Africa have been subsumed across the other vericals and businesses
in India, Japan and China are run as standalone regional busimess units and Infosys Public services (IPS) is
reviewed separately by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Further, the erstwhile manufactunng
segment s now being reviewed as Hi-Tech, Manufacturing and others included in ECS. Conseqguent 1o the
intemal reorganizations, there were changes effected in the reportable business segments based on the
"management approach”™ as defined in IFRS B, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Group's
pedormance and allocates resources based on an analysis of vanous performance indicators by busmness
segments and geographic segments. Accordingly, information has been presented both along busness
segments and geographic segments. The accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial
statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual segments, and are as set
out in the significant accounting policies.

Business segments of the Group are pnmarily enterprises i Financial Services (FS), enterpnses in

Manufacturing (MFG), enterprises in Retail, Consumer packaged goods and Logistics (RCL), enterprises in
the Energy & utilities, Communication and Semvices (ECS), enterprises in Hi-Tech (Hi-Tech), enterprises in
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Life Sciences Healthcare and Insurance (HILIFE) and all other segments. The FS reportable segments has
been aggregated to include the Financial Sernces operating segment and the Finacle operating segment
because of the similanty of the economic charactenstics. All olher segments represents the operaling
segments of businesses in India, Japan and China and IPS. Geographic segmentation is based on business
sourced from that gecgraphic region and delivered from both onsite and off-shore locations. Morth America
comprses the United States of Amenica, Canada and Mexico, Europe includes contmental Europe (both the
east and the west), Ireland and the United Kingdom, and the Rest of the World comprising all other places
except those mentioned above and India. Consequent to the above changes in the compasition of reportable
business segments, the prior pericd comparatives have been restated

Revenue and ientifiable cperating expenses in relation to segments are categorized based on items thal are
individually identifiable to that segment. Revenue for “all other segments” represents revenue generated by
IPS and revenue generated from customers located in India, Japan and China. Allocated expenses of
segments include expenses incurred for rendenng services from the Company's offshore software
development centers and onsite expenses, which are categonzed in relation to the associated turnover of the
segment. Certain expenses such as depreciation, which form a significant component of total expenses, are
not specifically allocable to specific segments as the underlying assets are used inlerchangeably.
Management believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures relating to those costs and
expenses, and accordingly these expenses are separately disclosed as "unallocated™ and adjusted against
the total income of the Company.

Assets and liabities used in the Group's business are not identified to any of the reporiable segments, as
these are used interchangeably between segments. Management beleves that it is cumentfy not practicable to
provide segment disclosures relating to lotal assels and liabidities since a meaningful segregation of the
available data Is onerous.

Geographical information on revenue and business segment revenue information is collated based on
indivedisal customers invoiced of in relation to which the revenue & othefwise recognized.

2.18.1 Business segments

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31, 2017 " FS MFG ECS RCLHILIFEHi-Tech All other Total
segments
Revenues 2765 1,119 2,300 1,673 1.258 TB3 33010208
Identifiable operaling expanses 1382 584 1107 802 623 396 210 5104
Allocated expenses 607 259 532 387 291 177 76 2,329
Segment profit 776 276 661 484 344 190 44 2775
Unallocable expenses 255
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Operating profit 2,520
Other income, nel 459
Share in associate's profit / (loss) and others (5)
Profit before Income taxes 2,974
Incorme tax expense 234
Net prefit 2,140
Depreciation and amortisation 254

Mon-cash expenses other than depreciation

and amortisation 1

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31, 2016 FS MFG ECS RCLHILIFEHi-Tech All other Total
segments
Revenues 2,690 1,047 2,081 1,858 1.2 758 2680 9.501
Identifiable operating expenses 1248 555 044 742 GBS 4N 156 4601
Allocated expenses 606 257  S05 331 302 185 65 2,301
Segment profit T36E 238 612 433 344 200 28 2588
Unallocable expenses 224
Operating profit 2373
Other income, net 476

Share in associale's profil / (loss) -

Profit before Income taxes 28561
Income tax expense T99
Met profit 2,052
Depreciation and amortisation 222

Non-cash expenses other than depreciafion
and amortsation 2

{Dollars m millions)

Year ended March 31, 2015 FS MFG ECS RCLHILIFEHi-Tech All other Total
segments
Revenues 2,362 1,008 1.932. 1.4#9- 1,094 S-Il.‘l. Z‘I:IE. 8711
ldentifiable operaling expenses 1,115 533 f89h B8h8 631 313 154 4189
ABocated expenses 541 245 478 353 286 156 50 2,089
Segment profit 696 230 588 438 307 174 2 2433
Unallocable expenses 175
Operating profit 2,258
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Other income, net

Share in associale's profit ! (loss)

Profit before Income taxes

Income lax expense

Net profit

Depreciation and amortisation

Non-cash expenses other than depreciation
and amortization

b
§m
2
@

2013
1M

2.19.2 Geographic segments

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31, 2017 Nerth Europe India Rest of the Total
America World
Revenues &320 2,295 325 1.268 10,208
Identifiable operating expenses 3,222 1,147 149 586 5,104
Allocated expenses 1,460 529 B6 74 2,329
Segment profit 1,638 819 110 408 2,775
Unallocable expenses 255
Operating profit 2,520
QOther income, nel 459
Share in associate's profit / (loss) and others {5)
Profit before income taxes 2974
Inecme tax expense B34
Nat profit 2,140
Depreciation and amortization 254
Mon-cash expenses other than depreciation and
amarizabion 1
{Dedlars in millions)
Year ended March 31, 2018 Herth Eurcpe India Rest of the Total
America Warld
Revenues I 6957 21 IB. 246 111 2. 9.501
ldentifiable operating expenses 2938 1,060 108 455 4 801
Allocated expenses 1,458 534 51 257 2,30
Segmant profit 1,562 sa2 86 35 259
Unallocable expenses 224
Operating profit 2,375
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Other ncome, net

Share in associate's profit ! (loss)

Profit before income taxes

Income tax expense

Net profit

Depreciation and amortization

Nom-cash expenses other than depreciation and
amartization

476

2,851
]
2,052
232

{Dollars in milkons)

Year ended March 31, 2015

Nerth Eurape India Rest of the Total

America World
Revenues 5,357 2,087 208 1,048 8,711
Ildentifiable operating expenses 2,558 1,028 15 438 4. 189
Allocated expenses 1,303 508 4 234 2,089
Segment profit 1,498 581 &0 326 2.433
Unallocable expenses 175
Operating profit 2,258
Other ncome, net 560
Frofit before income taxes 2818
Income Lax axpense 805
Het profit 2,013
Depreciation and amortization 175

Mon-cash expenses other than depreciation and
amortizaticon

2.19.3 Significant clients

No client individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues for the year ended March 31, 2017, 2016

and 2015.

2.20 Litigation

The company is subject 1o legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business.
The company's managemeni does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when ulimately concluded
and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the company's results of operations or financial
condition

Finanecial Statement Schedule - ||

(Schedule || of Reg. §210.5-04(c) of Regulation S-X-1T of the Securties Act of 1933 and Secunties Exchange
Act of 1934)

Valuation and qualifying accounts

Lifetime expected credit loss on customer balance
{Dollars im millions)

Balance nt. Tmn:i-uﬁon- Write oﬂ:.Balann at end

Description Charged to
beginning of differences cost and of the year

the year expenses
Fiscal 2017 44 {1 20 - 63
Fiscal 2016 59 (3) () {5) 44
Fiscal 2015 36 {4) 29 {2) 50
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1999

ADS

ADS
ADS
(1)ADS
ADS
@
DTC
ADR
ADS
(b)ADS
ADS
ADS
(c)ADS
ADS
ADS
ADS
(d)ADS

ADS
10 2003
2017 28
ADS
ADS ADR
ADS ADS
ADS
ADS
ADS DTC
ADR DTC
ADS
ADR DTC
ADS
ADS

ADS
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Infosys Limited:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Infosys Limited and subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2016. In connection
with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we aso have audited financial statement schedule
Il (financial statement schedule). These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

consolidated financia statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits

provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Infosys Limited and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2016 and 2015, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March
31, 2016, in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS”). Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all

material aspects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States), Infosys Limited's internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2016,
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based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated May 18, 2016
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial

reporting.

KPMG
Bangalore, India

May 18, 2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Infosys Limited:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Infosys Limited and subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2017. In connection
with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we aso have audited financial statement schedule
Il (financial statement schedule). These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

consolidated financia statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits

provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Infosys Limited and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March
31, 2017, in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS”). Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all

material aspects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States), Infosys Limited's internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2017,
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based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated June 12, 2017
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial

reporting.

KPMG
Bengaluru, India

June 12, 2017
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